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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE "j
Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301-3834 n
-r I I, 0-7I TKc Division OF PlanningTelephone; (603) 271-2155 „

Christopher T. Sununu p^. /503) 271-2615 Division of Energy
Govbrnor ' www.nh.gov/osi

November 30, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Southern New
Hampshire Services, inc. (VC #177198), Manchester, NH, in the amount of $215,133.00 to supplement the
Agency's Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), effective January 1, 2021, through December 31, 2021,
upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. 100% Federal Funds. (LIHEAP-US DHHS)

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the operating budget, as follows:

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance FY2021

01 -02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $215,133.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440; 15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program
due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their
historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP).
The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the impact of energy costs in low-income
households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with children, and households with high-energy
usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract will allow the
Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of homes receiving heating
system improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year which begins on January 1, 2021.
OSI estimates that approximately thirty-three (33) additional homes will be assisted in the CAA's service area as
a result of the supplemental funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to support this contract.

Respectfully-submitted,

^ared Chicoine
irector

G&C 12/16/2020

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



FORM WMBE (version 12/11/2019)

Notice:,- This a^cment and all of;its attachments shall become.public upon submissioni'to Govcraor, and.
Executive "eouncil for approvaL lAny information^t is:privaje,-.cpnfiHehtial qrprppnetarymust
be cicely identified.tpHhe agency and a'gfe'ed to in witing priofUo si^ing^ contract;

AGREEMENT
The State ofNew^Hdmpshire ^e Contractor,hereby mutuaJly'a^cow

GENERAL PRpyiSIONS

1. roENTIFICATldN.,
Irl State AgcncyName
Office of Strategic Ihitiaiives

1.2 S.tale.Agency Address"
107;Ple^ahtS.tr'eet,;Johhirori H
Concord,;New;Hampshire 0330J

;L:3, CpntractdfN^c
Sbuthern'New'Hatnpshirc-Ser/i

1.4 Cohtracior, Address
40 Pme Street, Manchester, NH'03103;

CpntiXctprThphe-;
Number

(603) 668-80.! 0

1.'6": AccouhtlNumber

01 r02-02-024010-77050000^ ■

500587^ 02BWP21

1.7 Completion Date
December 31,2021

!1.8 Price Limitation.

$215'. 133:00

r,9- CohtractingiQfficer for State, Agency.
KirkiStohe, y/eatherizatibn Program Manager-

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
;(603) 271-2155

1.1.1 Contractpr^Signature

V  <2 \

1.1X Name andTitle of Contractor Signatory
Ryan Glouthier, Deputy-Director

l.Ul State^iCgSficy Signature -.1.14; Name and-Tiilc'.pFStaterAgcn'cy Sigriatoiy

rTavgci Clil co/H^ t9ri/ec4ff//
yJlS Approval.by.ine w.hirDti^jflrtment of Administratipn,;pivisipn of P^phncj (if applicable) J

/  'By- B'rcctpr.pn:

1.16 Approvalby the Attprhey General (Fpiim; .Substance;"and.^j5cutipn);Y//^p^p7/^^^

en;

l;;]-? Approval bythc CroycmPr arid Ex'ccutiyc'Gouncil (ifapplicable)

G&6 item^hum^r: G&.C.Meeting Date:.
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2. SERVICES' TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hainpshare;/actiiig\0rou^^ Ac; agency iderilifi^, iii bjbck' 1.1,
("Sta^!')i engages :<^,tractpr identified in block 1.3
("Gpntracto^;) to p.crfomi, and the" Contractor sh^n performj the.
wprk or;salc of goods, or both, idotrifiedj^d mpre partculairjy
described iin the dltachecl .EXHIBIT B whiich" is. incpi^ratcd
herein by reference ("Sciyices")-

3. EFFEGTIVE^pATiV OF SERVICES,
3.1. Notwiths^ding: ̂ y ;prpvision of this Agreement-to: the
contrary, and subject: to die-approval , of the-Governor and.
Executive Council of tiieSta.te of New Hampshire, ifi^licable,
this Agreement,- and^l obligaUbns of the parties hercunder, shall
become effective on the date the Gpvempr and Executive
Council approve this Agreement =os indicated jn block ;l'.17,
unless no such approval is requir^,' in.wiuch case the Agreement:
shall bccomc'effective on thc'date the Agreement is signed'by
the-State Agcncy as'showni'in block l;.t3 .("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Se^ibes .prior' tb the
Effective Dale,-all Services performed by the Con&actqr pribr to
the Effective. Date shall be performed at- the^ sple ;ri,sk 'of, the
Cbntractor. and-in the event that this Agrecment'dpes npthecpmc
effective, 'the 'State, shall have no liability to the Gpntractori
including', without .limitation^ any qbiigadon to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or' Services perfomcd;
Contractor must complete-all Services by thc Gpmplclion^Datb
spccified;ih'block-.l .7.,

4: GONDITI'ONAJL NAXUiRE OF AGREEMENT;
^Notwithstanding any provision of this .Agreement to the
contraj7i all obligatibns lof the State hcreundcr, inclu^g,
without'liinitation, theTcontinuancc of payments hereunder, are
coniingerit^upon the avail^ibty and-continued.appropriation of
.fimds. affected by. anyistatc of'federal legislative or executive
action, that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies -^e
apprQpriation:or,avaiJabiiity of funding for this. Agreement and
the Scoperfor Seryices provided in'EXHTBiT B, in whole or in
part. In no. event shall the Sta&.'bc liable; for any payments
hereunderm cxcess.of such'availatle appropria'ted-fiinds; In-the
event .oTa,reduction or termination .o'f;appropriated-:funds,-the
State.shall.haye-the righl'lo withhold payment until such funds
become: available, if cvcr, and shbirhavc^.thc rightri'o^reduce or
terminate the Seryiccs under-this.Agreementvimmediately upon
giving-the .Contractor-notice of^such reduction :or:termination.
The State shall.not be required io. transfer funds-fi^om any other
account!or'source to'the Accounl-^identified.in block l:6'in.the
event.funds!,'m lhat:Account arc reduced or unavailable..

5. CONTRACT, ERICE/PRIGE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The.contiract'.price.'method of payment; and terms ofpaymenl
are identified,:ahd more.-paniculm-ly describcd-in, EXHIBIT. C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2;The.payment'by the State of the; contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the .Cohtractbr.Tbr all
expenses, of whatever-nature incurred bythe "Contractor in the
perfonnarice, hereof and shall be the only and, the complete

cprhpcrisation to the C6atract6r:for the Services. The State shall.
,havejno li^ility to the Cphtfaclbr other than the cpnti^ct price.
5!3 The State reserves the. right to offeet :fix)m any. amounts
othehyisc payable Ibthe Cpiitiactor uhdef-this. Agrcemcnt.those
liquidated ambuhts required or ijerifiiited by N:H. RSA 80:7
though RSA.80:7-,c orimydthCTpfdy^
5^4: Nbtwthstaridibg any provision in-this Agreement to the
cbnUaiy, and hotyrithstahding imexpected circumstances, .intno
eyent"shairthe'^totalpf:all paymcnts.authorized, or actually made
.hcrcundef,,exceed the Price Liraitatipn setTofth in block-1.81;

6 C.OMPLIANCE By CONTRACTOR,WITH LAWS

.AND REGULATIONS/iEQUAL EMPLOYMENT
opportunity;
6.1 'in; cpnnectipn with, tlic .pcrfbrinahce. of .the S.civices, the
'Gpritractpf shall comply with ajl applicable statiiteis, laws,
.regulations, and. orders pf\fcdcral,. state, county or. municipal
audiorities wWch impose any pbligatibn of diity- upon .the
Con'nactor,..mcluding, .bu^ not liinit^ to;, civil rights' arid equal
.cmplpyraehl bpRprtimi^^ la^_; In addition, ifthis A^ecracrit is
funded ini.any part by mpriiw of the Uhited States; the Cbritfac'tbf
;Sl^] winply with al) fcd.^1 executiye;^^
tod,,sUtulps,,and .witiij^y guidelines asthe
'S^e or .the-Unjfed S,tates;.is^^^^ u^lemeht,!hi5Se;regu
flie.Cphtrabtprs^^^ applicable.ihicUectual
property lavys:
6.2 Di^g-thc tcim.pf tius Agreement,, the. Cpntiac^ hot.
discriminate against employ^" "or applicants-fof cihplbyfnimt;
because of race;,cbipr,religibn}'creiW h^dicap, ̂xiial!
prientationi brriatiph^ origih^Md wUl.t^e affirinatiyeacti
preyenfsuchdiscn
6.:3.,'The Gphtractpr'agrecs tb\pciimt tlie':State;.br Uiiited States
accws to'any of the Gonttactorrs bp^
the pinpOse of aMem.ining.compiumcc w
and prd^, andr the cpyeimts, .temis and cpnditibhs ibf, this'
AgrMment;

;7. fEf^GNNEL,:
7;i .^frCpntractorsA^l atjU'pwn.expense provide aii perebi^^
necess^ to perfprm^the-Scnticw^^ The;Gpptra.ctbr wanarits that
alf .pc^nncl engaged" in the Senic« shall be quaijfied\to
perfpm. 'the. Services,- and 'shali' bei properly -licensed and.
otherwise'-authpfized tp}do so uhder/ali aj^licable la'u^;
:7.2-UiUess othenvise autiiprized in ymting, during the.'term of
this Agreement, ̂ d for 'a period. pf''s.ix.-(6) months, after the
Completion Date m;bfockd;:7;,the'Gontra^ hire, and
shall- not penrui any- subcp.^titractpr' or other peiapru firih of
corppratibn yrith_ .whom it ii "cngageS irf a .combined cffbirt to
pcrform'liic Semces.to hire; any person whb.'is.a State/emplpyce
or, bfficiali who" is materiaUy, .myblyed in the prpciireiriOTt,
admihistratipn or. performance of tltis Agreement^ This
provision shall ,survive:termination of tl^ Agrecmeiit.
-7:3 ThcxContracting Officer ̂ ecifiei-in block 1.9, or,-his" bf,her
•successor,:ShaH be the-State's represenlatiye. ,ln lh"c cyetit;ofany
dispute concerning the interprctatipn of is Agreement, the
Gontractihg Officer's-decision shall.be final fbr:ihe State.
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8; EVENT Q,F:DEFAULT/REMEDrES;
8;1 Any pne;of ;mpfe; of fojlpwng acts pf\6missipns,of; thc
Contractpr^shall institute a4eyent:6f defa

:pf Default"):,,
8.1.1. failure to petfonii the :SciVices' satisfaclonl^ or on
schedule;
8.1.2 faiiureHo subrnit'My reportjrepuired her^^^^
8.i;3:feiiure'top^pim My pj^erppvena^^
this A^ement;

8.2 yppn.thcocciOTencc ofMy Eycnt'.of,Default,;lhe^ State; hiay
takoMyone, or. more>„pr
8;2.1 give iJhe',Cpniractpj-.;a'^^ the'Eyeiit of
Defa'ult-ahd:requiring;it tP:l:^ remedied'wiUTj in .the. absence of
a greaterpf Icsser.sp^Mificationpf toei:thitty
date pftHe po.tice; and'if theEyentipfDefaiilfis
tenninaie this Agreemen^ cffcctivcjtwP;_(2) .days after/gi.Npng the
Gohtfactpr notice'oTtermm
8.-2:2 give tfieGpnUactpr'a the Eyeriiof
Default .and; ̂ ptrnding all payment .to ;be .made unider, ilhis"
Agfeeinent- and ordering that, the portion' of Ac; cphtttcl.price'^
which -would otherwise, accrac' to. the" Gpntractpr .dming; Ac;
period .fi'om the thte.of such notice untd .^ch Ume as" the State;
determines^-Aat the-Gohnactpr.hasjcuredi'the Event'.pf Default
shali never be paid tp iiie CPntractpr;
8.2:3,giW the Gontractpr.a written noticer^peaf^
Default andHset-:offagainst-any other "obligations; the .Suite may
owe;to the Contractor any dMagesithc;,State siifife
any'Event of Default; and^pr
8:2.4 give the!Gontractora:.winltcn noiicc'^ci:^ng;theEyeht'pf
Default,, treat the Agreement as* brcacKpd,. tciniihatc: the
Agreement and pursue any of-itS'remedies aUaw.pr in equity, Pr'
lx)th.

8.3. No'failureby the Stale to eiifpine any prpvisipns herepf aftq-
.any.Eventof Default shalfbc.deemed a'waiyer of its righto with
iregard to that Event of Default,- or My Subsc'quent Eyenti Pf
:I!)efauU. 'No'express.fajlure-lo enforce anyEventofpefaults^
be decmed:a.waiver.Pf thcjri^t of the Stote tP'enfprce' each arid
all of the provisibns hereofiupon-My furtheror olher.'Eyent of
Default on-.thepartiofthe;Gontractor..

i9: TERMINATION.

,9:1 iNotwithstMdihg paragraph; 8, the State may; at its sole
discretion, termihateiihe-Agrecmcnt for any reaspn,iin whole or
iDjpar^-.by thirty t3.0)^days written notice itoitheEpntractPr. that
the;Siatc:is exercising its.opiibn to^terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In thc;^eveni,of ancafly lerminaiibnnf'this AgreeriientTor
any reason other'than :the completion^of die,;Sei\ices, .the
Contractor shall, at: :ihe Staleto discretibOi deliver to the
Gontractihg.OfEccr-,not.later;than;fifleen.(l5) clays afler the date,
of'termination, a report: ("Termination Repoif')-describing, in
detail all Services performed, Md-the contract .price, e^ed, to
Md includingithe date of tcrminaiion.- TheTonni subjecfrnatteri
content, and;number,of;copies,ofithe Termination Report shall
be ideritical.to'those of any.EihalReport described in,the'attache3
EXHIBIT B. In-addition,:at.the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of'notice of early terminationi-'develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under

Agreement.
the

10. DATAyACCESS/GONFIDENTIALltY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As.uscd ih;thiS'^Agrecment,'the.word."data"^shaU mean^l
iriforihatibn and things developed or.obiained;during.tbc
i^rformarice;of, or acquiredprdeveloped by reason of, this
Agreeraeri'tj includmg,'but not lihiited-tb; ail.studies,'reports,,
files, fbrihulae, surveys, maps;.charts, sound recordings, video
fecbfdings; pictorial ireproductibris, drawings; Malyses.igraphic
represc.htatipris, ,cpmputer;pr6grarnSj computer printouts, notes,
letterSi memoranda; papers; Md documents, all-wheiher i
fihished or.unfihished.

10.2 Ajldata aridM'y.property wKich'hasibccn received from'
the State, or purchase with fiihds providedifor/that-purpose '
urider;this^A^®bment,-shall b,e;thc prcpeity of the State.iand ,
shall be-retumeditb lhVfStateiup demand or upon tennination
pfthis AgrccnaeritTbf ariy'reasdh..
10..3,CbiifidMtiality .of;data shaU be governed by N.H.;RSA..
chapter,91 -Abr;btheriexistihg law: Disclosure of data reqiiircs.
;pribf, writteri.apprpy^ of the State, I

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE state: In'the
;peiforma_hce of this Agrecmeht/the Contractor is.'in all. re^ecto
an mdepehdeht. cbntra'ctbr, ,Md is neither m. agent :nor m
employee of Ae State. Nei^ef^Uie;^G6ritractor;nor any of .its
.pffic^, empibjdes, agents or members shall'have authority. to
bindihftState-.'prfweiyeMy.bi^eme^ or
pthCTrcnibluriichto prbyidis^ the State toiits employees:

12; ASSIGI^dVIENT/DELEOATION/SUBGONTRACTS. I
.12.j The Cpnlractdr sh'airdpl'aKigni or bthefwise trartofer-any
intcrest.in this Agreemcnt'witjipUt.thc notice„wHich
shall berproVided tp;'the State at'ieastEftecii{(<I3)"-days^pribr to.
the'assig^erit,' a.rfd .a ̂^^tten,.consent of the State. For purposes:
of tos "paragraph; '"a, ChMgc} pf; ::Gbhtrol,,shall constitute
awig^erit. "Change of Gpritrbl" riiisaris: (a) merger;
cprispHdatipn.-of,a trMsaclipn prscricsjofrelat^-transact
.which a third party,- together with, itS: affiliates, ̂ becomes the;
direcfdr :"irid.ii^t?.p^er P'f^ Or more of the
-vptirig shares-of similar equity :.interests; bf combined voting:
ppwef-bf.th^e Contra^ the^salc of allbf substantially jal
of Ae asse.to of &e. Gbntractpf,,
12.2 ;Npne of the: iSefyices, shall, be subcontracted by, the
Cbntractbr wthput"pripr"ymtteri',nptice:ah^^ Slate;
The-Stato:is;cntiUed to cbpijwdf;all;subcbhtra^ arid assignment
agreements arid shali;ribt he bbund by ?'ahy-'proyisioris..cbritairi^
ipa subcpptractioTari a^igiiuS.ent::a^criienf:t6. it is ript:a
"party;

l;3;.INi)EMM '.Uriiess bthd'rwse exemp
^e-ti^pntractortohaU indj^jfy■ah■d^Kb hrirriilcis tlie State,lits
officers; and employees; .frpm. arid agiaihst any :ahd all claims,
liabilities aridppsts for My■perspn"afirijuly br;pfbpei^ damaged
patent or copyright inmrigemMt,;^^ against
the Stale,-its.officersjpremplp'yees;'w^^ ariise'put.bfCbr vyHich
may be claimed to arise out ;pf) thc' acts df praissibri of "the
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Contractpf, or subcqriU^ctors, including but. not jimitcd' to the
ncgiigchce, rcckl^ or inlcntibnaJ,conduct.. The State shall noi
Be liable for any cd^s •iricuitcb by^the 'Gontracibr arising under
this paragraph 13;..No.lwi,th's^ foTcgdihg, libthihg herein
contained shdlbe deemed to constitute a vvaiyefpfthesw
irmnuriitydfthe State,'^w^ii^^imthuriity is hVeby^
State.. This covenant in. paragraph" 13, shall isurvive the
tcrmi^lipn pf.this-.Agnccmc

14.-1 nic Cpntractpr shall,: at its. >Qle expense, pbtaih and
condnuously maintain in' force, md shall r^uire any
subcpnlractpr pi" assignee to pbtaih and inaintaih", in force, the
follo.wihg insurance;
;r4.i.l coT^ercial,general liability,i^urance agaiiis.t alfclaims
of bodily injurydMlh or property damage, ih",amounts of not
Icss'ihan $1,6.0.0,000 per pccurrence and $2j0.0.0,pp0 aggregate
or excess; and
'14T .2 speciarpausie oripss!;wyerage,form.cpvOTng ail^prP
subject to subparagraph" ip;;2'hcreih, in an.;amPuhi/npt;l^;t^^
80% of the whole placement value of the prope^
i4!;2.The ppliciw described in;^s.ubparagraph.;14;,l .herein.shall be,-
pn'.pplicyTonns.ahd cndprre^ apprPycd for usc'in.tKe'State.-
ofNcw. Hampshire by .die P®P^y1i?4ht pT Wst^ and
issued by insurers licensed in the Sjme pfNew.^H^
i 4 ;3 The: Gontraptor shall iftifoiish; to ̂ ei ,CphUa.cting Officer"
identified in block l-.9, or his'p.rher succc.$spr,{a certi^^
insurance fpr all insurMce r^iiircd under; this A^'cm'^t;
Contractor shall also furnish'tp the Cpntiactihg'QffiCCT.idenlifi^
in. block 1.9, or his or her; succcMor; C^fica,t.^s). pfJhsurancc
for all rcnewal(s) of ihsurance,repaired undiertius^Aigreem^
later than ten (rO) ;days prior to the expiratiPn. daic of CTch.
insurance policyj Tlic ̂ ccrrificate(s) Pf insurance any
.renewals'thereof shallbe atteched'and are incprpPrated hCTcih
reference.'

is: WORKERS*
1-5.1 .By signing this apwmentj the Cohtr^tor ag;^,pCertiiies
and warrants thaifoe-Gontracfor is inPompliance wUi or exempt
from, the requirements of.N.H'. RSA chapter 281 -A ("Workers'
Cbmpensaiion").
15.2' To.the extent the:Contracfor is subject to the.requ^erncnts
ofi N!H. RSA; chapter' 281tA, GontractPr sh^l mm.ntaih, and
require-any subcontractor or assignee" to secure Mdfmaintaini
payment of; Woricers-' Gompensation. in "cpnnectjpn' 'with
activities which.the person proposes to unditrtf^ pursi^t to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnishdie Gonjracdhg Officer
identified'in BlockT .9, or his orher^cce^rj propf of Wqrkera'
Gompensation in the manner described in^ N.H. ̂ A chapter
281.-A :and any applicable^renewal(s): therepf.^Which s^Il be
attached and' are incorporated herein by reference. "The: State
shall not. be; responsible for payment of ;fmy Workers'
Gompensation premiums or for any. other .claim or benefit for
Contractor, or, any subcontractor or. employee of Gontractor,
.which might ariise under applicable State: of New. HampsWre
Workers' Compensation laws ih. connectjon vwdi the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. "NOTICE. Any notice by. aipariy hereto to the o.thcr p^ty
shall be decraedjo have becn duly delivered or given at the^time
of mailing by ccrtificd.maili-postage.prepaid, in.a tJnited States;
Posl;Office addrcs$ed.;to the parties.at the addressesjgiven' in
blocks li2.and .I.4, herein.

17;. AMENDMENT. This Agrecraent may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing; signed by Uie:
partis, hereto, and only, after approval of such amendment,
waiver .dr-discharge by the.Governor and;Executivc.Council of
the State ofNcw Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under, the circumstances pursuant to State law,<nile or.policy:

18;. choice OF LAW AND FORUM.TTiis Agreement.sllall
"be. governed, inlc^reted'and constiued inraccordance with the
Laws. df:the. State ofNcwIHampshirCj.and is binding upon and
inures t6;the bchcfit of the parties and their-.respectivc successors
and assi^. The \v6rtling used in:this Agreement is the wording
chdserijby the parries to; express .their mutual , intent, and no rule
.pTcohstriictidh'shall be appli^ againsforiih fevor ofany party.
Ahy;adtidiis' ̂siiig put'idf.this'.A^cmcnt.sHairbe;brought and
'maintaihed ih New Hampshire Superior Court'which shall havc
exclusive jurisdictidh.thcrcdf;

,19: CONFLICTING TERMS. .In the event of ;a. conflict

between.;foe:.ter^ of,this .formTasfmodified in EXHIBIT
;A) and/or attachments:ah"d amendment thereof,'the terms.of the
P-37 (as modified ih EJQHBIT.A) shall control.

20. Tffl^ PARTIES. The parties hereto .do -not: intend! to
.benefit any tlufd parties Md.-this Agreement; shall rnot< be
,;c6nsthicd to^cprifcr'ahy isuch.bchcfit.

21. .HEADINGS. "The hcadings throughout the Agreement arc
for refefcncc purpd^. only,'and the words, contained therein
shall inuq wa'y;be Held;tp .explain rhodify, amplifyior aid-ih-the
interprelatidh, cphstruction of meting of ihc pfo>risions of this
Agreerbcnt.

22; SFECL^ PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
prpyisipns .sel.forthjh.thcjattached.EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein'by reference.

23, SEVE^BILITy.. Iri.the event any of the'provisionsbf"this
Agreement are Held by a;cpuft of "cpmp.et«ht jurisdiction ioibe.
contrary tp'M'y'swfo.of federal l>w,:the rc'ritiinmg prbviribnsiof
diis 'A&i^nieht.wiJ} rem^ fdrce;and'eflcci. i

24.. ENTIRE.AGR^ Tfos'Agrccmcn^'Which mayibe
executed. in"^a nu^m_bcr'.qf cpuri .each:of iwhich shall-|be
deemed ah original, constitutes the; ehtife agreement and
iinderst^dipg; betw.een foe parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements andhnderstandings .with respect to the.subjectmatter,
hereof; !

Page'4 6f.4
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NEW HAMPSHI® OFFICE OF STRATEGIC rNITIATIVES

EXfflBITA

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

.1. 2 CFR 200, as amended, (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principlesi and Audit
Requireinents:for Feder^ Awards),;,10 CFR,440 dated Febniary 1 ,,2002 (^wtiierizatibh Assistance
Proigram),.thc NeSy-^ WeatHerizatidn AssistanceTrogram (NHWAP) State Plan,-NHWAP
Policies:and'Procediu^siNlanual (P'&PM),.and NHWAP Field Guide arc'all.considered part of this
contrart byinclusibn.^d/ShEdi be.Jcgally enforceable,■documents uhdef tKisjcohtract
The Office of Strategic!lhitiatives (OSI).rcscrvcs the.right to use^any legal remedy at its di^osaJ
including,'but not ,limited to, disallpw^ce;of costs, witbJmlding of funds, susp_epsibn,of agQdcy
pemdnnei, disbaimcht of agency peisoimel, .disbaiment.of agencies'^d'bf'sdbcontractofs-fro^
presehtor future .contracts, and:such,other legal remedies:asdetermined-to be appropriate byithe New-
Hampshire. Departoent of justice in the enforcement of r\Ues,and regulatibhSpdrtainjn"g-to;the
WcathCTMtibh,Program.

2. Ah audit shaU.be made at the end bf the Contractor's fiscal yearm accordance with2.CFR,200,
SubpartF - Audit-Requirements. 'Tlus:auditTeport sbainhclude-aiScheduie'OfreyehUesVa^
expenditures'.iDycbnlfactbfgi^tmumb'er of "all expendifufes during the Contractor's fiscahyear. The
Cohtractor-shaH-utilizc acompetitive bidding process to choose a-qualified fihancialiaudiiotatde^
every fqiiryc^.-

The auditreport'shaUfinclude.a schedule of the prior ye^s questioned costs, aiong.with a response
;fegardiiig,the ciurent statusbfithe pribf/yeaj^S'qu^ costs; Copies of all mahagemchtdetters
•writtedas.a.result of theiaudit along widiithc audit.rq^rt;shall bc-forwarded to OSLwithin o.ne'mpnth
of the time o'fTeceiptby.the Conhn.ctpr.,accqmpanied b^ action, if;applicabliei fdfreach.fihdihgb'n
qucslibned cbsl.,

3. The following p^'gfapb^shail be added to paragraph 9:of the general provisions:

"9.3 Ail negotiated, contracts'(except those'' of iS5-,()06 br.less)'awarded.by OSI.to the Cbhtractbr shall-
allow OSI, UGE.'Health.and'-kuman .Services,, the Comptipller General of &e United Statesi or any
duly authori^ represenlatiVM to ahy'h6bks,.dbcuraenlS, papere,:ahd fecbfds of the.
iSUbgrantirc, of their subcbhtractbfs, which-afe directly pertinent to this.contract fbr 'the.purpose of
making audits, examinations, excepts, and^fi^scriptionsi"

4. The costs charged under ffis contract;shall be dctennined.a^s allpwahle under'the-cdst"prihciplies,
detaiied'in'2;CFR.200 Subpaft E--CbsfPrihcipaIs.

5. Prbgrarh and fihah'ci^.recbrdsjKrtaihing to this contract shall be retamcd by OSI and the Contractor'
Tor 3.(three) years froni the date,of subraissfotiof the &al expenditiire repp
rencwed qu^erly .or ahnu.ally, ffora"iiieMate;bf the submission.of the.quaftefiy of-annual financial
fep6fti-as}^aled'mr2.CFR-.200.333:.- ReteniioniRequirements for Records.

6. CLbSE'OUT OF'CONTRACT. All,final required reports and reimbui^em.ent.requcsfs shall,
be submitted to thc-State \yitHih f6fty^five.(45) days ofthe, corapletioh.date (Agreement'
Bjo.ck.L7).
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7. The following paragraphs shall .be;addcd t^p;die-general;provisipns:

*'25. RESTRICTION'ON Api)ITIONAL,Fyi^]fNCj, It is understppd;a,nd agreed betw:een,^
that no portion.,pf:thc ''Grant" f^ds may be,used.for-the.pui^se bf.obtaining additional-federal funds:
•under any dtherdaw of the United States, except if authorized under that law."

"26. :<^SURANCES/GERTIFICATIONS. The followihg.are attached and si^ed: .Certification
•Regarding Drng-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Ceftificatioh
Regarding Debarment, .Su^rtsioh and Qthef RespOhsibility'Mattcrs; Certification Regarding-the
Americans With.Disabilities.Act Compliance;i.Certification Regarding EnvironmentaTTobacco
Smoke; Assurance of .Compliance NOndiscnminatipn in Federally Assisted Programs; and
.Gertificatio'n Regardihg'the Federal Funding Accountability and Ti^sparency Compliance.^"

'*27. GG^ELAhnD AI^I-iGCKB.ACK ACT^ ,All:contracts:ah'd ̂ bgrahts;iri,cxc.esis.of:$2;000.00 for
cohstnictioh or repair shaU incliide a provision foncompliance with Gopeland'"AntirKickbac]ld' Act
j(f8 use 874):as supplementcd-in Department^ Regulations (29 GFI^ Part;3)r TldsiAct
proyides.-that each coriti^ctpr,,^bcontract of sub^ahteershali be prohibited,from inducing, .by any
means, ariy'pe'rsoh employed^in the constnictionj completion or repair of public wofkv.to giye up an
part ofthe compensatipn to which he is Othcwise entitled. TTie sub^antce sHouid fcpOft all
suspect^ YiolatiOris tO OSI."

*'28. pkCiCUi^MENT; Subgf^tec shall comply with aU provisibris.of 2 CFR 200 Subpaft'D -Pbst
FedefaKAwafd Requifeihehts - Procurement Standards with special emphasis on.fmancial
.prpq^ement '(2.CFR'200 Subpa^^ E - Audit Requirements) arid property fnanageiherit (2,CFR.200
Subp^.D -Post HcdcraljAw^ Rcq'uiremehts^ Property Standards:)"
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFIGE OF SJl^tEGiG INItlAtiVES

E^anBITB

SCOPE OF SERVIGES

i. Sou^era.New H^pshire SeiVices, Inc., KcrahaftCT "the Contractor," to utilize the;Building
WMtherization Program (BWP) funds, which arc the subject:of this contract and wKich have their qri
in toe-fedcral Low income Home Energy Assistance Program-(LrHEAP), to prpyideyeligibie tUemts with
wcathcrizatioh services; ihcluding hcating system repair and.replacement services, which meet the
requLrements;and standards^fpr LIHEAP weatherizationwpr^ andiapprpyed in the,FV2i
New Hampshire LlHEA? StatqPlan. In addition, aUiwdrk corapieted.using,BW will be in
accordance with the fiscal requirements of regulations set forth" ih^2'GFR 200 as amended, Mdyfiirbe
guidedand implemented^^ dieted by :theO initiatjyes;(pSi) in this contfact arid,
from time'to'tiine, in BWP Subgfantee Notices of other coriiimiriicatioris. The Contractor agrees.to
revisc.BWP practices.and'procedures to.incorporate'instructipns-from OSI;

Cbritfactbriagfecs tdihcorpofatexhangcs tothc NH Building Wcalhcrization.Pfpgram.as'prcscnbed by
OSI'to improve program deUyery;. Con^ctor-fi^(5r;a tp.perfdrm aU.weath'efizatjbri sei^ccs
iriannef;that:wiil successfully iriteract. with utility administered wefg^ efficiency programs for low
incomcrhouseholds.in order.tb.provide thehcst collaborative services for thpse.houscholds.

.2., This BNVP cbritfact period, to be kribwri as "BWP21;" will.commcnce on January 1, 2021, and will-have
a completion date of DecOTber 31,»2021, subject to thejapproyal of .thc Gpycmor and Executive
Council.

,3., BWP fonds, which ̂ the'siibjbct of this contract, shall riot b.eexpend'edfbr health and safety purposes.
However; in projects whefe.BWP^raoney.is used .without any-federal Weatherization.Assistance
Program (WAP) money involved -. m other words, where there jis no money fpr:ihe installation p^
andlsafcty measures,- then that!BW project may include,the cbstfbf ihcideritaj repair measufes.'(sec thci
NH Eblicies^arid Procedures Manuaj), if, by so doing, the.curaulativc SIR for the entire projectj is not
broughtdown;to below 1

•4.. 'j^o^ppftion.bfthe,B\\^-todirig;iri;thiS;Coritfact isset asideTor training.arid,technical.assistance,
(T&TA). Hbwcvcr,;Coritractor may choose to expend some orall of the designated adniirustrative
jfun(^;o,n T&TA activities^ Appfppriate:back-up;arid.juslificatibn' fô  the\use of those furids will be
fequLfed.by OSrpnbr to reimbursement.

'5; Di^g the contract period, the'Cbntractpr agr.ces'to. cpmplcte Wca^ scrv^^.-on the riumbeh
liiiits that lis the rcsult.of-dividirig the Coritfactof's PYZl. BWP allocation by.$6;500. OSI understands:
that-the actual.number, of BWP completions will likely ;diffe from Oiat nuraber'due to the
unpredictability of heating.systciri costs, ctc.,'but OSILexpects to see riionthly BWP pa^critrcquests,
.from thelContractor in ordcr to monitor BWP'spending progress. 'Unit.completions will bc done to the.
iStandards and cxpcctatipnsprcsented'm LIHEAP'wqatheriza ihis contract, arid the NH
V^'kPuPolicies'ahdP70cedures.Mdnudl,2^\9 edition, s&itibnjon B.WP management.

a. The number of dwelling, unlts^and the, amount oTfunds to be expended shall cpnfpnn toHhe.
provisions of this contfact; OSIfeserycs the fight to review^p^ogress,undef'this^contract ariahiy
time and riiay, utilize iriformatibn from such rc^cws to.alter dwelling imit goals and funds^fp.be
expended.,

Exhibii'B
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b. All funds provided to the Gontractor under this agreement must be expended by'Decernber 31,
2' 021.

6. ^Effective,April' l,.2015, all'work performed.under the federaj Weatherizatjon A^
:(W^);in'New Hampshuemu thjs minimum specifKatibnsidcfined-in; the USjDjipa
Ehci^y's QualityWorkPlan (QWP) and-the associat^ Standard.Work Specifications (SWS). While
BWP-work is to be'mMaged-mpstly under DOE rules; and is therefore hot subject tb.all df the same
speeificaliphs'and rcquirements.as'WAP work, Coriliactorwil! m^age BWP woricin atmanner which
provides clients with wcatherizatiomoutcomes similar to those/achieved under WAP guidance whe
possible,; The, occasions, when WAP rulesimust apply to B\V^ wdrk;a]re set put in this^documcnt
(Exhibit'B)..

7, GLieriteli^bility'fo'nBWp-funded weatherization.wofk should :generally be the,same:as;for WAP.r
funded weathenzation work- clieht'income is to-be:no greater than 200^op,f. the:federal;pOycrty
guidelines (^G)y Howeyer; because the'LIH^^ eUgibiHty incomepeilihg is.hi^er t&ah thc WAP
ceiiihg;(LlHEAP funds may be; .expended on.clicnts with incomes;at.or below. 60% of New Hampshire's
mediandncome, which, 'in.2020, is an amount Higher th^ 2p^p%!FPG); Contractor may uti liZeiBWP
funds'withpUents who.raeet.theXIHEAP incprhp^ If.tKe pfbjecl is to be in ariy part funded
using WAP'flihds, however; theh the.client'siincorbe must be no greater than:200°y^oTPGV

8;. B:^ mopeymay bc'"levmged" (used in cpnlbihatipnj-with.any\pther.wcathciiz^ fundihg.sburce.
If WAP/DOE.mPhey is used:m dwelling weatHerizatibn project,■thatproject-mustrbe completed to
WAP^standards and be approved as "WAP cpmplete- ready.Lfpfipimbin:sement"'by^^ certified Q.uality"
Gpntrplj insffectpr.

■9:. :BWP inohey may be used for either full dwelling'wcathcrizatipn upgrades onfor heatihg-;system
.iinprovemcnts:alpne. Gpnhactpr is'pb|igated under tins;Cdnnact.to expend ai'least,50.%'.of the
contincted.B^^.araouht'oh.beatihgjSysteini^airs and/orr^laccments.

a. The PY21 BWP package ofifbras (see item:12b reporting BWP expenditures will
inciude.pplunmstp niake.clear whcheVerX^P-rmohey was.uSc^^

il. for restoration of heating services (repair orrcplacemcnt of inoperable heatihg
^uipment),
.for prevehtiorifpfhwtmg'system Service loss (fcpaif of replacement to avoid
-approaching failure), or
for supplemen^g;pr..fuljy supporting a'whoie hpuSe'wcathmzatiba project, withispace
to.report-when-heatihg system work paid for with BWP funds is part^of :thal whole-
houseupgrade,.

,10. The,maximum'amount of BWP money to be:spent-:on any-one ,dwcUing;project;is' $8,0^^^ If the BWP
budgeifor ̂ y one projectmustexcecd'that ampuhl,;awaiye^^^ be roceiyed.frbni QSI. GSI will
reyiew>ali waiycf requests promptly^'d-will pfo\hde^approval when possible. However, applying-the
expenditure guidelines in the FY21 NH-LIHEAP .State Pl^'OSrWill-notapprove total BWP
expen(hhiius Phany onc/dweUih^^^ wealhertzatioh.project that e $12,000. This;total is^cumulative;
Suramingithe BWP expenditures made during all visits to that dwelling.

I I,, BWP^Rrp'dUcliph includes:

11.

111.

a. Weatherization upgrades which are cornmcnsurate with a.-wprk pj.an develbped fronif a thorough
dwelling energy audit and a TTREAT rhodel pfepafed by a'qualified fBPI^ertified) Building
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Analyst:or Energy Auditor or Quality Control Ir^pectprwhbias developed tte-wprk'.pian (the
energy cpnscr/ation.measures - EGMs- t6. be installed) using cither the "benefit/cost.ratio"
,(B/C) melhodblop' as.defmed'.by the utilities^Hbme,Encrgy^Assistance (OTAJ'programpr
"savings.tp investment ratio" (SIR) methbdoipg/ ̂  defined by-th'e US.DOE ior use.m WAP.,
^e SIR incthbdolp^ must'be "used when.the prpject. will include at least-one ECM wKich.is to
be paid.for with WAP fundS;

b.: Final inspections whiclfdctennine:.
i. -whether. lhe.project-s work plan was appropriate and complctev^talangiihtp accpunt the

methodology'-B/C pr SrR^-:usedl)y ̂ e energy auditor tp^select the EGMs to be
installed, the pre-weatherizatioh condition of the buildingj etc.

ii.: whether thait appropriate work plan was fully Md eff^tiycly implemented ih'the
dwelling,;prpyidihg.the"client with.a compfchehsiye energy-saving weatherizatibn
outcome.'

.c.. In projects where EWP-mpney is used.alpngside WAP mo.ney in the^S^e dwelling,.M
must be compjet^hsmg the W rules Md standards, ihcludingjthc in^allati'on ofonly those
mea^res which individually'achieve:an SIR equal fp or greatefUkn 1, the use pfaxeitificd

Cbntipl Inspector to perform.thc" final ihs'pcctib'h, etc.
d- <In projects where hb WAP mbneyns involyed,.the fmal BWP inspection may be perfprraed by-a

:person'holding a cuirent BPI <rerOficatibn in,at least'one of;the follpwihg ̂ a's: Building,
.An^yst,'Energy Auditor, or, Quality Cohtrol. Inspector,

c; EecauseBWPmohey is-"notWAPmoney,EWP mpney-maybe.usedTn wcatheriration.upgradcS
to dwellings wHchhaye'rcceived WAp:funded or B^^-fim'ded upgrades-since September of
1594 .by prcschtihg a-waiver feque'st'to-OSI. However::

i. rerweatherizaOon should bedone,;sparingly,^i^embcrjhg that there^ethou'^sahds of
potential cUentS;whb'haYerecdvednoweathen2a seryiccsfatiaH;

ii. care;'should.be taken, as always, to avoid.even-the appearance of favoriti^;
Jii. WAPmoney cann.ot bc;parttOfthe leyeraging:^^ onVre-weatherizeddWll^

;reccived'the benefit Of at least some WAP"dbllam;ih;'thc;first.found;of weatherization
work done;

iV. all'BWP-fbnded swond visits,t^ .previbusiy weathenzed.dwe whether that
'weatherizatibn work.was doneiwith WAP'Or-BWP orHEA funds.^must'bepreccdcd by
■receipt.of an approyedwaiyer fromOSl.

12. "The'trackibg bfBWP jobs will include:
a; Gonh^ctor prcpararion and;maintenancc of a^client fUeOh.eyery BWPjob:. Cohtractorvwili.

Utih;re;a,filihg.pf6toc61.which':allbws.iTC6vefy of the fUc when checking:future jobs against
previous weatherization work perfpnned at thai addresSi c.tc':,-evch;if 'no' W^ money-was;use"d.
KuturepAP'agency WAPP.i^^ io bc;able'tb.chcckoh:weatherizati wofk.completed
in dwellings,.even whenWAP money was not involved,

b. The use of a sep^te-B.WFreiinbursemcDtjre^uest packa'ge/sprea^heet supplied.b^ All
jbbs-with ahy.BV^'mOhey invested miist be submitted for reirbburscmen't on the BWP set of
fonhs. .If a^particular jbb also'includcs the use of anyWAPmoneyi then diat job will have,to be
submitted for WAPTeimbursementbawclji.using^tHerWAPireimbufscmehf request.forms'
already in use. Therefore, if a single weathcrizatibn job'uses funds from two-differe^
weatherizationJunding spurces.m^^ QSI, thatjpbVmust b.e-subm^ twice in"
prdef for'it. to be reimbursed forthe.coriect.araouht fpjm.cach'.source;.

13.- .This agreementcpnsists of the.fpllowihg-dpcumehts: a compreted P-37 forih,."and,Exhibits A, B; "C, PV
E,E;-G, H,;I, ahd.J. . All.cxhibits are.incorporated herein,by rcfcrencc as if fully.set forth herein.

I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFliGE OF STRATEGIC INITIAtlVES

EXHIBITC

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration Of the: satisfactory performance of the services set.forth in Exhibit B,.the:State agrees to.
pay the Contractor,; Southern New Hampshjre Seryices, Inc;,- up to the totalsi^ of:

$215^33 (which hereinafter is referred to aa^e "Gpnlracti^ Amount"),- of which.
•$: !lQ,;7-57 .is the,maximum to be spent on BWP-related adihimtotiye.costs,
•$204,3,76 (the.balance) to bc.spent on wcatherization activities:(Program Activity),

Prawdo.wns'Tfom thetbtal contracted amount will be-paid to the Contractor only, after written
documentation of cash need-is submitt^ to OSI! Disbureement Oflhe contractedamOuht'shall]bc made,
ih.accoift^cc.wi^ the established by the-State and 2CFR 200.305(b) on an advance basis;
limited to.'iniiiimum amounisineeded; and-be timcdto be in,accprdance..with the',ac.tu^, irnmediate cash
,requjrxmi€n'ts;pfthe;Gpnti-actof.in;cait}nhg;6ut.diepui^ The .Cbhtract6r;must make;
timely pai^ents,to (sub)cohtractofsfn accordance with;the contract provisions; Gpntracfpr.shall submjt:a
payment request to OSPfpr each month of the contract period using Ae:fprnis\tp .beproyid^.by;0
that 'puipose.; Paymehf requestsifrdmCbhtractof shall b'efeceived at-OSLho later than the-1'5''' day of each ,
month of the'fifst:business.day f611owing;the:r5'''.day.

Adraini.strative'cbsts ara proYided in ofdcf-to support a specified number-of-unif completions at minimal
•standards. Administrative ftinds may be prorrated by OSjJf prpducUpn^i^^^ cpmpletiohs do not meet
expected productiphgoals..;

•OSI will^alsp: be flowed, as-a function of its/administratiye:oversight,,,tO-modQfy'c;dhtract budget'
;amouhls-.as;necessary<tbehsmc.theefficientahdeffectivc:operation-,ofthe:contract as Ipngas these
modified.expenditures,do:notexceed'the;.tptaI"Gontracted Arnouiit" as speciified;abpye.

Aii bbHgatibhsbf the State, including the continuance of any payments, arc contingent upon-the
availability and cpntihued appropriation of, funds fo/Th? .scryicCs.to be proyided,
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARDXffllBIT 0

The Contractor identified ih^Section 1.3 of.the General Provisions agrees to comply .with ,the prpyisions ;of
Sections'5151 r51(50 of the.I^g-Eree' W Act;of 19,88 (Pub. L. rO()T69b;.Title:V, Subtitle D; ,41 U.S.C.
7.01,et^,seq^), and further agrees4o..have:the Gontractor's representatiVe, as idenlified'in Sections. 1.11, ahd.l .ri of'
the General Proyj.sions execute the.fqijowihg C.eitificalibh:

GERTmCATION'REGARDrnG DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATrVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US Department of energy

us DEPARTMENT OF homeland SECURITY

This certification is;required, by .'the regulatm^^ implcmcntihg Sections 5.i51-516p, bf the.DnigrFrce Worlqilacc
Act,bf.l988 (Pub. L. 100-^90, Title-V, Subtitle D;>4rUS.C. 701 et seq:). The^Janua^ 31,T989, regulations
were amended and published ;asP^,n of die May 25,. 199,0. Federal Register (pages;21681 -2169,1 )i ahd-require
.certification by grMtees (ahd.by'infefeh(:c, sub-grantees andisubrcontractors), prior.to.awardi that they will
maintain a"drug-free worlqilace.; ;S^ectibn.3bl.7.630j(c) of the.re^latioii prbvidcs^that a grantee;(and by;ihference,
'sub-grahtees arid sub-cohtfactore),that is".a!State may elecMo make one^ccrtification to die;Dep,aitocntin each
federal fiscafye^'in lieu ofcerti|icales for each.grarit'idunng.l^ fedcfal.fiscal ycar'cbyered by-'the certification.
Theicertificate set'out belowis a riiaterial representation of-faclupon.wbich reliance is^p.laced when the;agency'
awardsfthe gr^f. i.False certification'.pr: viojatibn ,pf the certificalibri-shall be;^urids'forsui^erisibn;bf payments,
suspensibri.or. tenTiiriatiori bf grants,, or government wide suspension or debarment.. Cpntra^ctprs;using this;fonri
shpuJd'send it to:

Director,.New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives,
107 Pleas^t Street, JohnsonHall, Concord, NH .033,0,1

(A) The^aritec certifiesithat it.will or will continue'tP prONnde a.drag-free worlqjlace'by;:

(a) Eiiblishibgia^statement notifying employees that the unlawfiil.mMufacturci^
disp.cn!singj;pplssessibn of use of:a,controlled substaricc.i^^ prohibited in'the;grantec's workplace
an'd'spccifyingthe.actions that willbetakcn against'employees for.yipl.ation,ofsuch;prblub^^^^

(b) Establishihg.anrongoihgdrugTffee awareness progi^ to infprm cmployees;ab.out^—

(1.) The dangerSsbf drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The.'grantee's.poiicy o.f mairitairiing a-dnigrfree^wbriqiiace;"
(3y Ariy available drug counseling,.rehabilitation, and employee as,sistance;prpgf^s;
(4) Xhe p.eriaities that may be imposed upbri.eriiployees.fbf tirog,^ violations occurring

.in the,workplace;

(c) .Making,it a,requirement that eachemplbycc to beengaged mthe:pcrfpnn^ce of thegrant be-
gi.ven a copy of the statenient 'itquired by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifidng thc;^^ the.statemeril requircd.by pafa^ph;(aXthat, asa.conditiOnof
'employment under ihejgrant, the employee will-^

(1.) Abideiby the tenns.bf the'statemenl; and
(2) Notify ih'e employer iri writing of his or her conviction for a. violation of a criminal dhig

sta'tutc'occurring in the workplace.'pp later than fiye calendar days.aRcrisuch'.cbhvictiOri;

Initials;

E^ibits.D tl^ H
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(e)

(f)

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUGtFREE WORKPLACE REQUTREMENTS
ALTERNATJyE I> FOR GRANTEES OTHEiFl .TH^ II^IVroiJALSi.cont?d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HIMaN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

yS DEPARTMENT OF H0MELAND SEGURltV

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calend^. days after receiving hdtice uh'de^
subparagrapk (d)(2);frQm ah employee or.othcrwise i^eivihg actual 'ho'tice of such conviction;
Employers of convictediemployees:must provide'notice, includingpOsiU.ori title, to every gi^t'
officer on whose gfaht'aclivity thexOhvicted.employee \vas working, unless the Federal agency
has desi^at'ed a central point for the^receipt of such notices. Notice shall.iiiclude the
idcniificatioh riumber(s) of each, affected grant;'

Taking onc of;the following actions, witEln 30 calendar days of receiving notice-under
subparagraph (d)j2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(g)

(1)

(2)

Taking-appropriate personnel action againsf such an employee, up to ahd.'includihg
tenhihation, cphsistcnt with theTequifements of the.Rchabilitation-Act of 1973,.as
amended; or
Reqiiiring such.i^ployee tO participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance.or
rehabilitation-program approved-fprsuch purposes bya Fcder^,r$tate,prJo^
law enfoipemerit, of ptherappropriale. agency;

Makingia good faith effort to continue tO/rnaiiitaih a dfu'g?free wOrkplace;through:impIemcntation;
of paragraphs (a)i (b);^c),-;(d)i (e), and (f)i

(B): The gfantec.may insert>in.the space-provided below the site(s) for'the perfoiroance Ofwork doheUh.
cpnnection'with'the}specific:gra'h^

I^lace;ofPerform.ance (street address,(city; OOunty,:State, zip^code)(iist•each.location)

40 Fine Street

Manchester, NH .03:1,03

Check n if'there.arc woflplaccs on file that are not-identified here;

Southern New Harnpshire Services, IhC. .JMiiary 1, 2021, to December 31,v2021

iGontfaclof Nariie Period COvercdbythis Certification;

Ryan Cloutfuer, EteputylbirectOf,
Name and Title of Authoiji^?Sd .C.ohtfactOnRcpi^ehtative

fv-tlo-T-OVw
COntractCTR.£ppresentaliye-;Signature Date

Exhibits b thru H
Page;2 of 7 |
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE QF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3'of the General Provisions a^ees to comply with the provisions of
Sectiqh3)^?'0f;Public I^w ipi-121, GpVenmieht;w:'ide"G,uidanceTpfNew Restri 3,1
U.S.C. ,1352, ̂ d further, agrees-to Kavc:theCoDtractor,'s representative, as identificd in-Sectibhs 1.11 and.l ,12 of
the General.fro\nsio.ns execute tfiefbjlbwing'Certi

cerTIeigation

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEP^TMENT OF HQMELAND SECURITY

Programs" (indicate applicable^program.covered)':
'Community Scp'ices BipcXGrant
Low-lDcdihe Home Ebei^.Assistancc Program
HR^ Program

BWP Program

Contract Period; JahuaryM,.2021, toDeceraber 31, 2021.

Thcuhderaighed..ceriifies,'to'the;bcst ofhis or her knowledge and.bclief, that:

(l ) No Federal appropriated'funds have.been paid or will be paid by or on behalf,of thc undersjgn^j to any
pcraonfpr.infiuencing or attempting;toihfluchc«;an.officer; or,employe aMember^of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a'Meniber of Gpngress in cprmection
with'theiawaiding prany Ecdcraf cphtinuado'n, renewal,,'amehdm<mt, or"m6dificati6n-of any-
Federal.contract, grant;doan, or cooperative agreement (and-by specific-mention sub-grMtce or sub-
contTactpr).-

(2) If any funds other than' Federal.apprppriated,funds haye,beeh;paid or will.be paid .to.any-person for
•influencingoraUcmpling'to influence an-Pfficer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an'
officer or crapioyee of Coh^ss- dr'ah cnipibyee of a Member of Congress in cdnnection with this
. Federal .contracf,grant-,-lqa^ or coopcratiye agreement (^d.by sp;ecific;mention-subTgranre^ of.^b-
contracto'r), thedhdcreigried sHaUodniplcte ahd submit Stahdaid Form LLL,''disclosure Form to Report^
'Ix)bbymg,,m^accordance'yrith jts insliuctions, attachcd^and identified as .Slan<^d,Exhibit Erf.

(3) The-undersignediS.h^i tWir® this, certificatiop bp included imthe/awaf^^
for suWawardslat all tiers.(includihg.siibcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, Joans, and-
cooperatiye.agreements) and that-all s.ubrrcciplents^^ certj'fy anddiscldse acCofdihgly.

This certificatibn.is a material rcpresentatioh bffact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or ehtered ihto. Submission of this certification is aprerefluisite for raaldng or entering into this transaction
imposed by'Section .r552^,Titlc 31, U.S. Gqde. ̂ y'persOn.wHb.failsJb-filethe required certificatibn.shaJrbe.
subject to:a ciyil_jiehalty of.notJcss than $:10,000^an<J not more.than $100,0p0-for each such failure..

Ryan Clouthier, Deputy-Director
.CphtfactbfcBl^resentatiye.Si^atufe

SouthemNew:Hampshire Services, Inc.

Contractor's Representative Title

1)

Contractor Name Date'

Initials'

Exhibits'D:lhru H-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INTTIAllVES

STAND^OU) EXHIBIT F

The Cohtractoridchtified in. Section 1.3:of.the':General Provisions agrees to cpmply.'wlth;the proyisibi^ of
Executive Office p'tthc President, Executiye..Order 12529 and "45 CFR P^ T.d'fegafdmg Debamient, Suspension,
arid Other Respdrisibility-Matters, and'further agees.to have the Contractor's representative, asridcntified in
Sections ldj,and,i;12 of theGcneral PrpSdsibpS/execute theToll^^^ Certiiicatibri:.

CERTIFICATION REGARDINO DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSrBIIjlTY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) Bysigning and^bmifting this proppsd '(contract), the;prospcctiye<pririiary participant is'prdvidirig'the
certificatiOri'Sct put'belp.w.

(2) The inability.of a p^pn to provide the ccrtifiCationTeqriired beiow"will hot ne<^ss2uily rcsullvin.dcm^ of
participatibri iri.this covered transaction. Tf.hwcssary, the prospectivcvparticipant shall submit'an explmiation
of why'it cannot provide the certiificatipn. 'Theccrtificadbn pre^^ vdll be cbhsiden^.iricbrihectibh
with the NH OfficepfStrategic:lhitiatives.(OSI) determination.whether to enter into'thiis^nsactipn.
However, failurepf the pipspTOtiyepriniary.participant tp;"f^^ certiificatipD praneiqjlanatibhshaU
di^ualify such ̂ redn i^raTarticipatibn ih.this transaction.

(3) The .certification ih this clause is a materialrcprwentat pf^act upon which:rciiance was placed whehOSL
determmed to chter/into tHis trahsactiori. IfitUs lateridetermined that thc-prospectivc primary particip^t
knowingly renderedan erroneous certifica.tipn. injaddi other remedies available tb'the Eederai
-Opyerninent, OSTmay terhMate^this.transactibh for caiise or default.

(4) The prospectiveprimaiyparticipant shall prpyidelnuneda^ notice to tKe OSI agcricy tbi'whbm this'
•proRpsal (cbritrapQTs submitted,if at'ffiy time the protective primary parlicipanWeaims thatritacertificatipn
was erroneous-when submitted or has become erroneous by.reaspn of chariged circurastancw.

(5) The terms "covered trariMctibh," "debaifed," "su^ridedj" "ineligible;" "lower tier covered, timisaction;"'
"participan6" "persori,'' "prima^ cpye^ tTansactipii," 'T^plpsi" "proposal," and 'Voluntarily exbluded,"
asused'.irith.is clausc,:have thCimcarimgs,sct!^but;ih'the"Defih and.Gbvcrage;sections.of'the:ru|es
Jmplementingj-Executive Order I2549/^c45 P

(6)' Theiprbspectiyc primary participarit'di^ces'bysubriuttihg.this prbposal (contract) that, should ithe prpppseB
covercd-transactibn be cntercd-intp; ihshall npt lmpwmgly enter into anyJp.wer.,tier"cbVercd trahM'ctiori m
f^fson whb is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible; or voluntarily excluded from participation m this:
covercd-transactibn, unless authorized by. QSL

(7); The protective■prim^participarit;further a subihitting-this proposal-thatut wiU.include the clause,
titled -Tertificatibn Regarding Debaiment, Suspcnsioiv.Ineli^biU^^^^ Ypjuntary.Exciusibri - I^wcf-Tier
Goycrcd Traiisactiphs," provided by OSI, without-modification, in all lower tiencbvered transactionsiandin
all solicitationsiforiower tier coyer^ t^sactions..

(8). A p,articipant;iri,a cOyefed trarilsactiohmay rb aicertificatibri bf.a prospective pa^ticipant in•a.lpwchtier•
coyc^cd.b•ansaction that'it ismpt debarred, suspended, meli^W^ or inyojuntar^y exclu^^ cbyer<^
trttbtibn, uhlessdt' khows that.th'e ccrtificatibhis efrbhebus. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by whichut^determines the ehgibiHty of its principals: 'Each participant may,, but is nbtrrequifcd tp,.
check th'e.Nbnprocure'merit'List (of .exclude partiw).

(9). Nothing contained in-the foregoing shaU.be corwtrued tp:requirc establishment of a system of recbrdsrin order
to reiiderjngbbd faith.the certificaidbn required by this.clause. The knowledge and i'nfbrmatibn of a
participantris not.required fo'exceed.that which is'nprnially possessed by a pradent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Excepifor transactions.authoiized-underparagraph-b of these mstnactions;.,ifap;articipant in a covered'
transactibn,knowingly ciitefs into a Ibweritief .cOVcred tfansaction with a.person-who is^suspendied, debarred;
ineligible, or .voluntarily excludedfrom'partjcipadpn inHhis ,fraiisaction,'in,additiOn to other^remedies.
available.to the Fcderalgbverimierit, OSI inayterminate this transaclion for cause or default.

Initials

ExhibitS'b thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGAMING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVEREt) tR^SAGTIQNS,^

Cehi/icdtidn.RegardingDebarment,.Suspension,<and Other
>  KesponsiSUity Matters - Primary Covered fransdctioris'

(11) The'prospective primary p^icipanl, certifies to the'best of its^knowlcdgc and belief, that it and its
,principals:

(a) are:no(preSeiitiy deba^ su^cnded, proposed fondebarmeriU/declared,ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any'-Fedcral department'or agency;;

(b) have not.within a three-year period preceding this proppsa) (cphtract) beeri cphvicted'of or had;a
ciyil jud^ent rendered agaihst-tliem for coimhissiori of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaihingi attempting tp obtain, or performjng,a'public;.(Pederjd State of local) tfansactidh
pf a contract under.a public transaction; vi61ati6n:of Federal or State antitrust statutes.or
commission.ofembczzlcra.enl. iHcft.Torgery, bribery,.falsificatiph or dcstfucripn of rccprds,
making false'statemehts\.6f.fecciYih stolen property;

'(c). are-npt;p'rescntly indicted,forotherwise criminally.or civilly.charged'by a goyerament_a| entity
(Fedei^i,\State or local) ,with cpmmissjpn.pf any of the pffchscs^ienumerated in-paragraph (l)i(b)
of this'certificatibh; and

(d) have not'withih-.a.three-year period preceding this appUcation/prpposal.had one or nipre public
transactions (Fc.deral,'State,'pr.!pcal);tenhjnated'fpf-'w

(12) Whereidie prospectiye.primary participant isdnableto; certify to; any of the statements.ihthis
certification,;such prospective participanf shall attach an explanatiomto this proposal (contract);

Certification Regarding. Debarment, Suspension, Incligibiliiy and
yqluntary-iExclU^pn - Lo^rTier. Cdyered Transactiphs

.(Td.Be'SUpplied lb Lower Tier Piarticipants)

By. sigmrtg and-submitting thisripwer tier prpp6sai-(c"ohtra.ct), the prospective lower tichp^icipjmt, as defined,in-
45 CFRPart 76, certifiest'oithc best ofits.knowledge and belief that it and.its principals:

(a) are not prcsentlydebarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, decl^d jneii^ble.jor vpjuntaniy'
excluded,.from;participatioh in this.tinhsactipri.by'any d<^<irtihent.Or agency;.

(b) where.theprospcctiyeipy/cr.tier'p'ariicipant isuhabie'tQ ce^^^ any pfihe above;.siich
pfospective;participant;shalhaltach:an explanation to this'proposal (cpntraci),

The prbspectiYe lowdrttier parties fnrther agrees^by submitting lhis proposal (contract) that it wiU include this
clause-enjifred."Gertificatipii Regarding Debariherit;. Suspension, ,ineUgibility,.ahd,V^ -•Lower
Tier .Cbvefed.Trarisactiohs," without.modification in all iowcr:tier covered transactions ̂ ddn all splicitalipns for
lower tier covereflTfansactions.

Ryan Clouthief, Deputy.'Directdr

Qpntractp^R^rcscntatiye Signature

'SouthemNew Hampshire.Seryi'ces..In"c:

Contractor's Representative Title

ft - to- lio'Lo.
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractoridcntificd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by .signature, of the Contfactor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing.and'submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

s: Ryan Clouthicr, Deputy Director

^Srfractor Representative Signature

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H

Page 6 of 7
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C.Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted.for by
an entity and used routinely or-regulariy for provision of health, day care; education, or library services to
children under the age of 18, if the services are.ftmded by Federal programs either directly or through Stale or
local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to.children's services provided in private residences, facilities.funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatieht drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity;

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it- will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included.in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

Ryan Clouthier, Deputy Director

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. '^1- to.-Z.g'i.o

Contractor Name Date

Initials
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DOEFI600;5.(p6-94) '
OMSCentrcfNe; i'9104K00, ,
All Olher Editions Are.Obsolete ,

NEW HAMPSHri^ OFFICE 0F STRATEGIC, INltlATiyES '

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF GOI^LIANGE NONDISGRfiv™ IN FEDERAI:LY; ASSISTED
PtoGlUMSi

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement.

Tublic-repoiting bmden fbr tKis collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes'pcfresponse,
including the timeTor reviewing instructions, searching cxisting;data sources, gathcringj^^d maintajning the data
,necded,'and completing and reyiwing ̂e'cbllection.of infprmation^^^^^ commcntslregarding tliiabu^
estimate .oYaiiy dther. aspecl^of this collection of ihfofmalidn, ihcludlhg-suggestibhs for reducing this burden, to
Office of InformationResources'Management.Policy, Plans, and Oversiigfiti-Iiecords Manageme^ Division, HRr
^22 - G.TN, Paperwoi^Reductipn,Proj;ect ;(1'910^4^^ ,U,S. Department of Energy, lQOb:;inde^hdenceAvchuc,,
S'Wi:, Washin^'on,,DC 20585; and-to thc.Officc of.Managcraent and'Hudget^Olto), Paperwoi^.Reduction
Project'(1910^W), W^hington, DC, 20503.

SouttierD.New Hampshire Services..Inc. (Hereinafter called the "Applicant") HEI^BY AGREES to comply
with TiUc:VI,pf jhe Ciyil',]^ (I^b. L.;88-352), Section i6;pf;ttie"FedWi^.Ericf^^AdMms^
Act 6n974,'bRub. .L. 93.-275), Section .401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 197.4 '(Pub^X. 93^43 8)^ Title DC
of thc Educatipn.j^endments of1972, as amcndedi (Pub.X; 92-318;^Pub;j,L. 93^568;jand Pubj L. 94-482),
Section 504^.dfttie,RSKa^^^ Act,of 1973 (iHib. L. 93-112), the Age Discriininatidri Act ofl975:(Pub.,'L. 94-
.135), Title Vni of thciGivirRi^ts Act of 1968-(Pub. L. 90-284), the Department ofEnergyrOrganiMtion A^
1977 (Rub. L.:.95-9.1-),;th.e Energy Conservation and PiXKiuctipn.Act pfi976,:as amended,.(Pub.;L 9,4-385) and
Title iPi Gode of Federal Re^latidhs, Pan,1040. In accordance with^the above laws:andregulations issued
pursuant-1tHereto,the-AppUcant ag?;ees''to'assure that;no ̂ rson;in the'Cnited. State$;s^^^ ground, of,race,
cojpr, riatiphal.onjgm,.'sex;:age,;or disability, be e« p^icipatiori iii, be.deiiied.the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjectedlo discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant ̂ eiyes Federal
assistance fî m Ae Department of Energy.

AppHcabili^ and Peribd of ObUgatipp
In.^e case;of;^y'seiyicCi fmahc.ii^ aid^ cpvefcd erapio)ment,.equipment,-pfopa^ sthictufe proNHded, leased,
bf-iinpfoved withFcdwal assistance cxtendisd.to the Applicant byithe-Department ofEnergy, this.assunmce
obligates UierApplicanffor the;penpddun,ng:.whm assist^ccls:extendcX;in:^^^ pf any transfef of
such service, fih^ciai 'aid,.eqiupmen't, property,;orstitictufe, this ̂ suraiice'obligatcs.the ti^sferee.for the,period
during which.Federal^assistance isrextended. If any personal property is^so provided j,tins assurance obligatesithc
AppUcanffpfthe period duriiig^y^^^ it retains ownership or pbsscssipo of the^property:,In'all other cases, this ;
assur^ce bbligatcslthe Applicant for the-peHod during whichVthe Federal.assistancc.is extended to.the Applicant '
byihe DepartmenVof ̂ergy.

Eniployment Bf actices
Where a primary objective of the. Federal assistance is to.prpyide employment;br,whefe'the Appiicant's:
erfiplo^eht pracficcs.hffect',the delive^ df.sefvices:ih programs or activities resulting from'Federal assistance
extcnded-byithe Dcpartrnent, theApp|icant'agi«es'noi-.to discriminate pn'the.grojmd'.pf
origin, sex, age; or"disability,.in its employhienl practices. S.uch,erhplp^eht"pYactic.es;may include, buljare not" i
lirhited tp,,recruitment, advertising; hiring; layoff or termination, promotion,'diemotibn, transfer,.ratcs'of pay;
trmmng;and p^icjpatiqn ih.upward mpbility'progr^s; or other forms 'ofpompcnMtion and use of faciiities.

'Subrecipient:AssqraDce.

The Applicant shaH'fequire. any individual, qrganizalibh,.or other entity with, whomIt.subcohtracts, siibgrants, or

.Exhibit I
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sublcases'for the'Rurppse pfprovidingla^ service, financial.md,cquipmenl, prope of isti^ctufc to comply
with laws arid fegulatibhs cited.above.To.this crid.^the subrecipicnt.shall be^required to sign:a written assur^ce
form;,however,ithc obligabpn of bqi^;recipientMd subrecipient tp ensure; cpmpiiancc is ript relievcdby tlie;
.collection Or siibniissiPri of written assurance forms.

Data Collection,and Acpess to Records

The Applicant agfeestojcorapilc and maintain information pertaining-to.programs or activities develpped^ a
result of the ApplicMt's receipt.pf Federal assistancelfmm.lHeDcpartmerit of Energy: Such iriforihatiori shall,
include, but ismot lirnited to the follovvirig: (1) the.maniier-in which services are-or will be provided and related
data necessary for'dctennining''whcther any persons ̂  or wi]J be denied-such scr>icespn the basis of prohibited
discriminalipn; (2) the:pPpulatidri,ehgft to;be served by.face, color, national origin, sex, age.and disability; (3)
data.fcgaxdirig covcfedicmploymentincluding-use or plarmed use of biiihguafpublicxpntact/emplpyecs serying
!benefici^es,of the prpgr^ wHcrc necessary tP.permit effective participation by beriefibiaries unabie'to speakror
undcret^d English; ̂[4) the Ic^ation.of.exiistmgior'pfo^sed faciUties connected with the>program and related,
information adequatefor-determining whether the location has or will hayethc effect"of unnece^arily"^^^
.acxess.to any.person pmdie pfprphibitcjdiscrimina^^^ thc^^prescntpf propos©d;membership by:race^
;color,mati6nal origin,jsex,i age arid,diMbility?ih'any- planning or advisory body whicb.is-an'integral part of the
program;'and.(6),'any additional written data determmediby the Department "Of Energy tp;.be'^
.pbligatipn to assure'compliance byiwipienfs;with lawlcited in.the first-.para'graph.bfrthis assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submifrequested data fp'the Dispartment of Energy regtnding-pfpgi^ arid'activities
develppqd by lhe\App]icant:from'lbe;use ofFederarassistance fiinds.extcridedby the Depa^ of Energy;
Eacilities:.Of'the Applicant (including the physical plants^ buildings, or pther strupturcs) and altrecp^
accqunts,^and other s.qurces of jnfonnatibnpertinent to the, Applicanl!s.;co'mpliance;.witb thexivil.ri^ls laws
shall bc-.niaderayailablc for-ihspcctiori.during normal business hours on .request of an-officcr or empioyee o.f die
Department.bf.Encrgy specifically authorized to make such inspections; j^structipris in this;rcgari will be
provided by the p)itctpf,'Qfficc.bf C U.S. Depaftment of Energy.

This assurance is givenim^xonsideratiOn.ofand for the pujpose of obtairung;any/and all Federiil^grarits, Ibaris,
contracts (excluding proCurement cpniracts property,;;discoiints, Of.otheriFedefal assisfaLhce;exteridcd after the
date'hereof, to the Applicants by the.Departmcnt ofEriergy,including in;rtaUmcnt;paymrats:pn=accpunt;a^
such datarof application^fbrFederal-assisiarice-which are approved,before "such ;dflte;;The'Applicant
and agrees that su.ch Federal'assistance wilfbe extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements
madein.thjs assurance,,,and'that thc-United,States shall have therightioseekyudicial enforcement of this
assurance, This.as^ bindmg;pn,die Applicant,the; successors, ti^^sferees, ari'd'assigo;ees,,as well;ais:the-
pers"ori(s) .whose signatufesiappear below.and w^ are authorized to sign this assurance on beh^fpf.the
Applicant.

Applicant .CerdficatiOD

The Applic^t certifies that 'it has compiied, of that, 'within;90 days of the date;Of;.the grant, it will .comply widi
all.app!icable;requifcmerits.of lO C;F.R. §i 1040.5 (a copy, will-be furnished.tp^jdieT^pplican^^ uppn'written
request to'DOE)..

Ryan'Glputhier, Deputy Pireclpf Signaturef \Sv Date; n

iSouthern.New-Hampshire.-Services; Inc.
40 Pine Street, Manchester,'!^, 03103.
(603) 668^8010:

Exhibit 1,
Pagc.2oif2 .

Initial(V^ Date, vv^o' ̂  ̂
.Award #G-2()02NHUEA, GFpA"i^93.5.68



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACGOi/NTABlLITnY
A® TMiNSPARENGY. AG^^^

The Federal Funding, Accpu^^^ Tfarisparehcy Act (FFATA) requiresiprinie; aw.ardees
bf-ihdivldual Federal grants equal to^or greater than $25;000 and awarded>op'o.r^afte^ Qctqbcr 1^,2010;
to report pn data ;relat^ to executive ̂ jprapensation and associated ■fiJ^f-tie^^sub-^'ahts of $25,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result-in a tptaj awa^;
equal .to or over $25,000, the^award iS: subject to the'I^ATA;repOrting requirements.-a's of the datc'ofthe:
award.

\n atcov^nct^'\\ii,lC¥K.'?&tt%10{Repdrling:Subawardiand.Executive Comperisaiton 'Infdrmaiiqn),\ht
New Hampshire Office of.Slratcgic ImtiaUves must report'the fpllpwing inf6rmation'fpr'any;subawahi,o.r
contract award subj^.l tbl.theFFATA fcpbrtihg requireniients:

1) Name of entity
.2) Amount^ofaward
3) fiun4ing;agency-'

- 4) NAICS-cdde-fof cohlfacts /GFDA program number for grants
.5^) Program source
6) Award dtledescnptive ofthe.piupb funding aciibh
7) Location bf the entity
•8) Pnhciplciplace'pf.peffo
~9) Unique identifief df the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compenMtion and,names of the top^five cxecufiyesjL

a. More;.than 80% of annual g^ss rcyenues 'are from the Fcdcral.gdverhment;.and^those
revehues-are.g'eater than<$25M:annually and

b.; Gpmpensation .infpimatio.n,is,np^ avajlablc'thrpugh'rej)brting tb^theiSEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit.FFATA.requifed databy .the;erid of them^ plus 30 days, in which
theaward or-awardamendment is made.

The Contractor iderilifled'invSectio.n 1 ?3 of.lheGencralProvisipns.a comply with the prbyisibhs of
The Federal^ Funding Accounrabihty-.and Act,- Public Law j,P9--2,82 ^d Ihiblic Law 110-
252,. and 2 GFR; Part l^Q" {Repgrting-Sul^w^d. q^^ Cpmpensptipn In/pfmdtidn), and further
agrees to hays the Gpniractor's representatiyc, as identified, iif Sections; l.U. :and 1.12; 6f the 'Gehefal
'Provisions exwute'tiie fpllpwing Gcrtificatipn:

The below.named Gonjractor agreesjtp.prpyi^ needed itifonnation as outlined above to the Nevy.
Hampshire Qffice^bf Strategic Initiatives ahd'to;comply with.ail applicable provisions ofthe Federal
Financial Accpiyitabi^i^y/and Tianspa^cy Act.

Ryan Cibuthief, Deputy Directof

(Contractbr.Repfesamative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name^^
Sbuthefh:New Hampshire.ServiCes; Inc. _ ^^ ^ . . •

(Contractor-Name)' (Date)

Exhibit J
Page -1 of2

Tnitiakv!^;^ ^Dat'cH-ig
Award #.G^2002NHL1EA, GEDA #93.568



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

St>U»rt>ARD EmiBIT 3

FORM A

ASithc Contractor identiiiedjn;Sccli6n' 1.3 of .the General Provisions, I certify that the responses tothe.
bclow.listcd questions are true^d accurate;

Iv The DUNS number, for your entity is: 088S84065

2. .tri^youf business.pr'organiMtioh's preceding coiiipleted fiscai ye^j-did your business or organization;
receive (1) 80 .pcrccnt or-morc of your annual gross revenue in UiS .-fcd^l contracts,'subcphtractS, loans,
grants, ;Sub-grants; and)or cppperatiyeCagreem ahd,(2).$25,000;000 or;m^^ in annual, j^bss revehues-
fî rn.U:S. federaf.cbhtracts, subcbhtracts, loans, grantSi sub^nts;.and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

Ifthe answcr-to'#2ja]bbye is NO, stop here

if the absw.er to'#2 above iis YES, please answer the fdllbwihg:

3; :Ddes the pubiicjhaye. acccss to.-mfbrmation about'the compensation of the executives:in;your business
oroi^ariizalion throughpcribdicrepprts:filcd undersection'13(a) Or l5Xd),ofthe,STOuritjes;Exchang^^
of 193^ (l-5'.U;S.G.78ni(a),,78p(d)) of septjon 6104 of the hitefhal:Reveriue Code of 1986?'

;N0 X YES

If the answer to #3:above;is Yl^,;stop^h^

if the;anwer to i^^3.abpye is NO, please answer the foilow

4. The namesrand cprnpenpatibn pf^^ fiyemoSt.hi^y compe^atcd bfficers in ybuf business or
drgahizatibmare as follows:'

Name:: ' Amount;

Name: . Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name:! Amount:

Name:' 'Amount:.

Exhibit J

.Pagc^2of2:
Initials

Award #G-2002NHTJKA. CFDA #93.'568



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE,

I, W.illiam M. .Gardner, Sccrciaiy of State of the State of Ncw;Hampshirc, do hereby certify that SQl/THERN NEW

HAMPSHIRE SERVICES INC. isjaj^cwHampshire'Npnprofit.Cprporetion regi^ered'to transact business in^New Hampshirc on

May28'. f965'ij.furthcr certify, that all.fees and documents required by the ScCTCtary pf;Statc's offidehave been received and is io

gp^ sttndihg as.far M^this o'fTice is concerned..

Bii^nessJD: ;.6S5p6

Ccnificate;Numben,0604913065

%

o
<H>

W3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my'hand-and^cause'to.beafnxed.

the;Seal of die StatcjdfNw Hampshire;-

ihis; I2th day of May A.D; 2020.^

William M. Gardner

Secretary, of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(GprporatfcAutbority)

L  Orville-Kerr ^ ^ GlCTkySccretafv of' Southern New HaniPshire:Services: ..
(Nanic) (Corporation ;name)!

(Hereinafter the'"Corporation"). a New Hampshire corboratioh. hereby certify tEat: am the duly
•(State)

elected and acting ClCTk/Swretary of the:Gpri3pratipn; (2) I'mamtain M'h'ave custody
minute b,opks of the Qorporation; (3). I amjduly authorized to issue ccrtificates with.respecf to the cpntents^of such
books]-,(4);that thc,Board;of.Difectors of thc-'Gorporahpn ha^^^ authorized, bh'fi 0 ̂ . such.authnritv

to be in force^abd effect until Q e.Gi." j.j ,3.0^7
(Contraditermination date)

.Tlie person(s) holding the belpw listed i»sitibn(s) afe.authdri^ to cxecufeiahd deliver on behalf of the
Cprporatioh aiiy cohtract.dfrothef instmmehtifor thersale.ofproducts and-services;

Donnalee Lozeau Executive Director.
(Namis) (Position)

Rvah Clbuthief Deputy Director
(Name)' (PosiUdri)

. James Ghaisson Chief Fiscal Officer
(Name) ^(RbsUion)

-Ron Ross- "Housihe'Fiscal Officer
(Name): (Position)

(5) JTte mee^g of'^e Bbard,:ptP.ircctors--w"^;held in acc with New Hampshire
(State of incorporation)

law, ̂d'the by-laws of lAe Cpqjprahonj and (^ S'aiia^^ beeh, modified, "amended or rescinds
aiid cbntihues:m^!ffil!,fo effect;^ of thc^date^hereof'

IN wt,my.hahd''as'ftheGleik/Secfet9rypf the.corporatibn''this

day of .:20' ̂ 0

STATTE QF New^.Hambshire

COUNTY OF iHillsborough

'Glerk/Secretaiy

\  f'Qri.thisy/;^ davbf 20' n bcfbre mc:,
the undersigDed]Officcr..pcrsonallV appeared . O.ir O I k Q:r f^ who^acknowledgedihcr/Himself'
to. be:tfic ̂ -j ,..;a.borpbratibh
and that shc/hc as" such being authorized to do.sb, cxecuted'tlieTorcgoing
instrument forlhe purpbses thefeihvcbfttl^

•IN WflNESS VVHEREpF.i hereunto set,my!h^d:and;bffi.cial seal.

■Notary Publi^^JusU«N^^iP5ig^^•
Commission ExpjMjtOqwBaMon Ewlres'Octobef 7.'2b2'"5;



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

1/2/2020 '
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADOmONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER License # 1780862
HUB International New England
600 Longwater Drive
Norwell.^A 02061-9146

TaJc.'nI.exH: (781) 792-3200 | r-AS.No):(78i) 792-3400
l»SS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDINO COVERAGE NAICH

INSURER A: Cincinnati Insurance Comoanv 10677

INSURED

Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
40 Pine Street
Manchester. NH 03103

INSURER B: Eastern Alliance Insurance Comoanv 10724

INSURER C:

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTFtACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

INSP
SUBR

wyn
POUCY NUMBER ri.i''.li>l'VaVaalli.J,'.'i>!l'Va'*'a<l UMns 1

A COMMERCIAL GENERAL UAfilUTY

E 1 X [ OCCUR ETD 041 72 57 12/31/2019 12/31/2020

EACH CICCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC

MED EXP (Anv one oeraont

,  1,000,000
j  10,000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY
j  1,000,000

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE
j  2,000,000

....

policy! 1 X i LOG

OTHFR:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG
j  2,000,000

r s

~a"1 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
ETA 041 72 60 12/31/2019^ 12/31/2020

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fFa nrrirt^nn

s  1,000,000

IT ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY fPer oeraonl s

OWNED '
AUTOS ONLY '

AU^S ONLY
1

SCHEDULED
AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl) s

IT X
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecodeoli s

S

~T'X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

X OCCUR

ETD 041 72 57 12/31/2019; 12/31/2020
EACH OCCURRENCE

,  5,000,000

CLAIMS-MADE AGGRFOATE
s  5,000,000

1 DEO 1 X 1 RETENTIONS 10,000 1 s

~b"WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y ̂ ̂
ANY PROPRlETORff'ARTNER/EXECUTIve rTTi

If yaa. daacriba under
OF5>CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

03-0000112165-02 12/31/2019 12/31/2020

X 1 ^ATUTF 1 1 Pr"'
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

j  50,0,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
,  500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
j  500,000

T'Professional Llab. ETD 041 72 57 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 Aggregate $2,000,000 ̂ 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarica Sclwdula. may t>a attachod If mora apaca la raqulrad)
Automobile: $500 Comprehensive Deductible / $1,000 Collision Deductible

Workers Compensation Covered States (A): NH, ME

NH Office of Strategic Initiatives
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRJ8ED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, P.A
CriRTIPIED rUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Mark R. Carrier, CP.A.

Michael R. Dunn, CP,A.

Jonathan A. Hussey, C.P.A., M.S.T.
Steven R. Lamontagne, C.P.A.

Gary W. Soucy, C.P.A.
Gary A. Wigant, C.PA.
C. Joseph Wolverton, Jr.. C.P.A.

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statement
of financial position as of July 31, 2019, and the related combined statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 12, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
combined financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization's combined financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's combined financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

OueSette ̂ ^sodates,
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewislon, Maine



OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, P.A.
CERTIFII-D PUBIJC ACCOUNTANTS

Mark R. Carrier, C.P.A.

Michael R. Dunn, C.P.A.

Jonathan A. Hussey, C.P.A.. M.S.T.
Steven R. Lamontagne, C.P.A.

Gary W. Soucy, C.P.A.
Gary A. Wigant, C.P.A.
C. Joseph Wolverton, Jr., C.P.A.

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of

Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

Tothe Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and AfTiiiate
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate's compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's major
federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2019. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and affiliate's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's compliance.

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned '
ftinctions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in infernal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less, severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate as of and for the year ended July 31, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated February
12, 2020, which contained an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements. Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the combined financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined
financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the combined financial statements as a whole.

OueQette ̂ ^sociates, <P^.
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Federal Grantor

Pass-lhrou(;h Grantor

ProEram or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pass-Through

Identifying

Number

Subrccipicnl

Expenditures

Federal

Expenditures

FEDERAL AWARDS

U.S. Denartment of Apriculture:

Pass-Through Stale ofNew Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

WIC Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women.
Infants and Children 10.557

10.557

184NH703WI003

174NH703WI003

S S 1,228,016

114,692

1342,708

Pass-Through Belknap Merrimack Community Action Program
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10.565

10.565

201818Y800544

201919Y800544

100,632

8,609

109,241

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department of

Education

Child and Adult Care Food Program

Summer Food Service Program for Children
10.558

10.559

1,046,749

126,951

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture S S 2,625,649

U.S. Denartment of Hnu.sinp and Urban Develonment:

Direct Program

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy 14.249 s s 520382

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department of

Health and Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 EI7-DC-33-000I 93,004

Pass-Through Belknap Merrimack Community Action Program
Xcad-Based Pant Hazard Control in Privalcly-Owncd Housing 14.900 4,000

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development $ s 617386

Subtotal s s 3,243,035



SOUTHERN NEW IIAMPSHIKe SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAI- AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Fcdfrai Grantor

Pa.ss-lhrough Grantor

Program or Cluster Title

Total U.S. Department of Education

Corporation for National and Community Services:

Direct Program

Retired and Senior Voiunlccr Program

Total Corporation for National and

Communit)' Services

Subtotal

Federal

CFDA

Number

Amount Fot-H-ard

U.S. Department ofl^bor:

Pass-Through Stale ofNew Hampshire Department of
Resources and Economic Development

WlOA Cluster

WIOA Adult Program
WlOA Dislocated Worker Fomiula Grants

Total WlOA Ouster

Senior Community Service Employment Program

WIOA Youth Activities

WIOA Dislocated Worker National Reserve

Demonstration Grants

Total U.S. Department of Labor

U.S. Department ofEnergv:

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Governor's Office

Office of Strategic Initiatives
Wcatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

Total U.S. Department of Energy:

U.S. Department of Education:

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department

OfEducation

17.258

17.278

17.235

17.259

17.280

81.042

94.002

Pas-s-Through

Identifying
Number

02-6000618

02-6000618

02-6000618

02-6000618

02-6000618

EE0007935

Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002 670II-ABE

84.002 670II-ABE

84.002 670II-ABE

84.002 670II-ABE

17SRANII002

Subrecipient

Expenditures

S  142^56

135,936

278,192

34,787

Federal

Expenditures

$  3,243,035

S  1,131,666

1,379,303

2,510,969

247,158

13,487

459,003

S  312,979 S 3,230,617

S29J73

S S 529J73

S s 32,099

I4J08

19,745

40,555

$ s 106,707

s s 115,829

$ s 115,829

S  312,979 s 7,225,561



SOUTHERN NEW HAMi'SIHRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Federal Grantor

Pass-through Grantor
Program or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pass-Through

Identifying

Number

Subrecipient

Expenditures

Federal

Expenditures

Amount Fors^ard S 312,979 S 7,225,561

U..S. Dcnartment oniealth and Human Services:

Direct Program

Head Start 93.600

93.600

01 CHOI 0602-01

OIHP0009-04

S . S 6,409,350

285,097

6,694,447

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Office of

Strategic Initiatives

Low-lncomc Home Energy Assistance 93.568

93.568

93.568

G-19BINHLIEA

G-18BINHLIEA

G-I90INHL1EA

10,052,278

875,547

135,676

11,063,501

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department

Of Health and Human Ser\'ices
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part B, Grants
•  for Supportive Ser%'iccs and Senior Centers 93.044 I8AANHT355 13,957

Temporary' Assistance for Needy Families 93.558

93.558

2017G996I I5

20I8G996I I5

847,513

69,719

2,867,424

284,041

917,232 3,151,465

Community Services Block Grant
Community Services Block Grant Discretionary Awards

93.569

93.570

G-I90INHCOSR

,G-I7BINHC0SR
1,623,853

50,552

CCDF Cluster

Child Care and Development Block Gran!

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of
The Child Care and Development Fund

93.575

93.596

20I8G996005

20I9G999004

1,129,624

1,046,584

Total CCDF Cluster 2,176,208

Pass-Through University of New Hampshire
Every Student Succeeds Act/Preschool Development Grants 93.434 IH79SM06I289 109

Total U.S. Department of Health and

Human Ser-\-iccs 5 917,232 s 24,774,092

U..S. Denartment ofHomeland Securitv':

Passed-through Regional United IVay Agency
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 S s 5,750

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Governor's Office
Office of Strategic Initiatives
Emergency F<^ and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 592600-007 S s 11,239

Total U.S. Department ofHomeland Security' S . s 16,989

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS S 1,230,211 S 32,016,642



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

NOTEl: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate under
programs of the federal government for the year ended July 31, 2019. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only
a selected portion of the operations of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate,

it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE 3: HEAD START PROGRAMS CFDA #93.600

In accordance with terms of the grant award, the Organization has met its matching
requirements during the year ended July 31, 2019.

NOTE 4: INDIRECT COST RATE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate has negotiated an indirect cost rate of
9.80% with the Department of Health and Human Services.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with CFR Section
200.15o(a) of the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

.Yes

Yes

_Ycs

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

V  No

V None rep

V  No

Yes

V None rep

CFDA Number

orted
j

V No

orted

Unmodified

V  No

Community Services Block Grant
WIOA Dislocated Worker National Reserve Demonstration Grants

Head Start & Early Head Start
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

93.569

17.280

93.600

93.568

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section 11 Financial Statement Findings

No matters are reporlable.

Section HI Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.

V  Yes

$960.500

No

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statements of
financial position as of July 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related combined statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combined
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organization's preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.nel



Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate, as of July 31,
2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 12,
2020, on our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and affiliate's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

OueSette ̂ ^ociates, <PJi.
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I,20i9AND20I8

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ 6,986,538 $ 5,699,842

Investments 8,405,690 9,085,663

Contracts receivable 3,488,413 4,165,520

Accounts receivable 821,565 836,174

Prepaid expenses 95,197 90,163

Under applied overhead - 67,750

Total current assets 19,797,403 19,945,1 12

FIXED ASSETS

Land 2,697,868 2,571,794

Buildings and improvements 12,530,561 11,610,610

Vehicles and equipment 1,415,271 1,278,185

Total fixed assets 16,643,700 / 15,460,589

Less - accumulated depreciation 5,237,138 4,964,258

Net fixed assets 11,406,562 10,496,331

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 411,580 402,738

TOTAL ASSETS S 31,615,545 S 30,844,181

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt $ 109,413 $ 122,582

Accounts payable 657,676 458,388

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 1,045,805 1,102,712

Accrued compensated absences 359,819 345,967

Accrued other liabilities 227,703 238,012

Refundable advances 1,028,743 1,309,098

Over applied overhead 27,739 -

Tenant security deposits 84,231 81,801

Total current liabilities 3,541,129 3,658,560

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion 3,036,025 3,134,219

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,577,154 6,792,779

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 25,038,391 24,051,402

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 31,615,545 $ 30,844,181

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contract revenue

Program service fees

Local funding

Rental income

Gifts and contributions

Interest and dividend income

Unrealized gain on investments

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

EXPENSES

Program services:

Child development

Community services

Economic and workforce development

Energy

Language and literacy

Housing and homeless

Nutrition and health

Special projects

Volunteer services

SNHS Management Corporation

Total program services

Support services:

Management and general

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

20 J 9 2018

$ . 37,464,614 $ 36,935,915

907,560 790,570

242,894 318,992

1,191,372 994,930

208,728 638,712

314,554 271,590

12,233 441,314

720,124 640,735

41,062,079 41,032,758

8,589,865 8,424,337

1,530,674 1,449,210

6,984,684 7,756,926

13,414,281 12,777,365

436,073 370,697

263,240 238,541

2,527,495 2,486,119

1,768,326 1,797,358

125,050 1 14,704

2,396,939 2,017,381

38,036,627 37,432,638

2,038,463 1,770,202

40,075,090 39,202,840

986,989 1,829,918

24,051,402 22,221,484

$ 25,038,391 $ 24,051,402

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Program Services

Economic Nutrition

Child Communit)' Workforce Language and Housing and

Development Services Development Energy Literacy and Homeless Health

EXPENSES

Payroll $  5,063,755 $  958,969 $  2,792,330 $  1,519,961 $  294,501 $  104,911 S  1,000,035

Payroll taxes 406,991 74,606 220,133 124,867 24,800 8,51 1 80.427

Fringe benefits 1,350,633 134,639 492.014 389.808 26,683 22.106 222.241

Workers comp. insurance 102,429 8,625 6,948 17,712 736 262 30,682

Retirement benefits 273,637 89,527 182,279 89,727 7,851 6,689 62.967

Consultant and contractual 37,142 70,228 1,595.405 1,770,887 6,505 654 20.695

Travel and transportation 118,863 19,729 78,856 37,134 992 4,110 47,713

Conferences and meetings - 10,976 - 7.537 225 - 3.471

Occupancy 524,894 58,004 456.078 125,814 28,957 I.D20 78,801

Advertising 13,742 25 8,610 1,117 218 • 399

Supplies 243,037 19,254 38.322 57,531 9,422 192 47,201

Equip, rentals and maintenance 12,341 57 13.689 18,308 1,816 - 29,650

Insurance 19,509 24,941 4,905 20.099 - - 6.966

Telephone 85,487 12,661 27.046 20,468 2,547 385 41,963

Postage 5,522 7 553 30,214 568 58 3,189

Printing and publications 5,268 630 - - 1,281 - -

Subscriptions - - 446 456 - - -

Program support - 38,256 - 35,312 6,121 - -

Interest 12,995 - - - - • -

Depreciation 64,865 5,920 24.379 10,070 1,045 - 9,920

Assistance to clients 7,800 - 1,066,041 9,156,531 • 114,335 547,988

Other expense 251,015 34,650 19,523 7.118 - - 299,023

Miscellaneous 35,436 736 1.323 1,813 21,805 7 2,024

In-kind 2,248,292 • - - - - -

(Gain) Loss on disposal of assets - . . 125 - .

SUBTOTAL 10,883,653 1,562,440 7,028,880 13,442,609 436,073 263,240 2,535,355

Over applied Indirect costs - - - ■- - - -

Eliminations (2,293,788) (31,766) (44,196) (28,328) - - (7,860)
TOTAL EXPENSES $  8,589,865 $  1,530,674 $  6,984,684 S  13,414,281 S  436,073 S  263,240 S  2,527,495

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Program Services

Support

Sen'ices

SNHS Management

Special Volunteer Management Total Program and

Projects Services Corporation Services General Total Expenses

EXPENSES

Payroll $  74,200 $  73,480 S  492,484 $  12,374,626 S  1,313,585 S  13,688,211

Payroll taxes 6,191 6,004 33,947 986,477 99.061 1,085,538

Fringe benefits 11.699 11,872 209,681 2,871376 181,973 3,053,349

Workers comp. insurance 2,644 184 10,549 180,771 4,483 185,254

Retirement benefits 2,834 2.369 33,859 751,739 110,189 861,928

Consultant and contractual 1,579.582 478 154,356 5,235,932 90,851 5,326,783

Travel and transportation 4,649 6,554 58,681 377,281 14.194 391,475

Conferences and meetings 3,727 220 16,307 42,463 1,675 44,138

Occupancy 18.040 • 600,154 1,891,762 32,663 1,924,425

Advertising 460 2,444 1,050 28,065 75 28,140

Supplies 3,624 6.599 17,685 442,867 40,709 483,576

Equip, rentals and maintenance 4.167 177 21,671 101,876 768 102,644

Insurance 2,007 1,206 40,184 119,817 19,901 139,718

Telephone 2.253 1,453 19,545 213,808 2.167 215,975

Postage 42 535 1,505 42,193 15,912 58,105

Printing and publications ■ 175 • 7,354 • 7,354

Subscriptions ■ 900 130 1,932 360 2,292

Program support 4,077 • 43,787 127,553 - 127,553

Interest • • 59,264 72,259 - 72,259

Depreciation 35.345 - 347,894 499,438 536 499,974

Assistance to clients 1,492 • 88,251 10,982,438 - 10,982,438

Other expense 11,056 1,550 21,821 645,756 13,055 658,811

Miscellaneous 237 8.850 120,753 192,984 1,283 194,267

ln>kind - - ■ 2,248,292 - 2,248,292

(Gain) Loss on disposal of assets . - 3,381 3,506 - 3,506

SUBTOTAL 1.768326 125,050 2396.939 40,442,565 1,943,440 42,386.005

Over applied indirect costs - - - - 95,023 95,023

Eliminations - - - (2,405,938) - ■  (2,405,938)

TOTAL EXPENSES $  1,768,326 S  125,050 $  2,396,939 $ 38,036,627 S  2,038,463 $ 40,075,090

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY3I, 2018

Program Services

Economic Nutrition

Child Communitv Workforce Language and Housing and

Development Services Development Energy Literacy and Homeless Health

EXPENSES

Pavroll $ 4.957,052 $  954,145 $ 2,665,005 $ 1,604,803 $  260,923 $  108,074 $  996,641

Pavroll taxes 408.351 75,089 211,297 134,215 22,698 8.701 82,048

Fringe benefits 1,165,602 126,449 394.224 368.400 12.404 16.013 205.632

Workers comp. insurance 103,257 9,387 6.542 16,946 651 271 32,119

Retirement benefits 262.948 84,961 173,276 83,274 6,498 6.622 56,860

Consultant and contractual ̂ 40,049 26,382 1,534,030 1,575.384 6.614 459 22.816

Travel and transportation 117,346 35,209 64,613 41,310 812 5,490 50,659

Conferences and meetings - 5,071 - 7,585 65 - 4,786

Occupancy 509,137 57,628 738.328 135.204 24.229 1.020 76,845

Advertising 9,803 - 8,489 1,442 25 - 150

Supplies 374.662 20,349 32,178 65,002 11,743 239 57,054

Equip, rentals and maintenance 21,468 82 39.839 19.776 934 ■ 23.648

Insurance 19,453 25,393 6.933 19,828 - - 6,565

Telephone 67,962 22,505 46.995 19,322 2,398 420 44.357

Postage 3,837 201 1.481 34.823 350 82 3,683

Printing and publications 4,679 673 -
304 1,51 1 275 224

Subscriptions -
635 - - - - -

Program support ■ 16,178 • 29,907 8.176 - -

Interest 11.962 - - • - - -

Depreciation 54,064 5,920 7.900 13.280 1.144 • 1.468

Assistance to clients 7,800 - 1,826,232 8,613.799 - 90,875 528,940

Other expense 246,533 10,013 32,666 18,899 • - 294,475

Miscellaneous 83,868 446 11.094 2.190 9.522 - 5.009

In-kind 2,269,028 - - - • - -

Loss on disposal of assets - - . - - - -

SUBTOTAL 10,738,861 1,476,716 7,801,122 12,805.693 370.697 238.541 2.493,979

Over applied indirect costs - - - - - • -

Eliminations (2.314.524) (27,506) (44.196) (28.328) - •  - (7,860)

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 8,424,337 $  1,449,210 $ 7,756,926 S 12,777.365 $  370,697 $  238.541 S 2.486.119

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Conlinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2018

Support
Program Services Serx'ices

SNHS Management
Special Volunteer Management Total Program and Total

Projects Services Corporation Ser\'ices General Expenses

EXPENSES

Payroll S  63,372 $  75,363 $  422,932 $12,108,310 $  1,258,069 $13,366,379

Payroll ta.\es 5,433 6,159 42,979 996,970 96,197 1,093,167

Fringe benefits 1.447 13.772 137,202 2.441,145 154,995 2.596,140

Workers comp. insurance 2,427 188 8,844 180,632 4,341 184,973

Retirement benefits 2,305 3,179 44,515 724,438 113,858 838,296

Consultant and contractual I.630.I0I 448 171,365 5.007,648 70,685 5.078,333

Travel and transportation 2,655 1,698 55,755 375,547 10,124 385,671

Conferences and meetings 3,706 • 26,557 47,770 770 48,540

Occupancy 13,874 - 470,606 2.026,871 25,489 2,052,360

Advertising 75 25 83 20,092 125 20,217

Supplies 3.181 2.557 9,617 576,582 58,000 634,582

Equip, rentals and maintenance (23) 79 8,837 114,640 878 1 15,518

insurance 1,353 1,226 34,976 115,727 13,745 129,472

Telephone 2.854 1.332 14,613 222,758 3,890 226,648

Postage - 271 940 45,668 17,288 62,956

Printing and publications - 38 -
7,704 913 8,617

Subscriptions • 1.000 551 2,186 - 2,186

Program support 22,782 - 101,335 178,378 - 178,378

Interest - - 43,543 55,505 - 55,505

Depreciation 25.062 - 317,695 426,533 536 427,069

Assistance to clients 19,869 - 26,984 11,114,499 -  • 11,114,499

Other expense 867 2,767 3,836 610,056 6,398 616,454

Miscellaneous 188 4.602 71,187 188,106 1,651 189,757

In-kind • - - 2,269,028 - 2,269,028

-  Loss on disposal of assets (4,170) - 2,429 (1,741) . (1.741)

SUBTOTAL 1.797,358 114,704 2.017,381 39.855,052 1,837,952 41.693,004

Over applied Indirect costs - - - - (67,750) (67,750)

Eliminations - - - (2,422,414) - (2,422,414)

TOTAL EXPENSES $  1,797,358 $  114,704 $ 2.017,381 $37,432,638 $  1,770,202 $39,202,840

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
-



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 3 i, 2019 AND 2018

■

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  986,989 $ 1,829,918

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 499,974 427,069

(Gain) loss on disposal of assets 3,506 (1,741)

Donation of low-income housing projects - (283,644)

Unrealized gain on investments (12,233) (441,314)

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Contracts receivable 677,107 (374,696)

Accounts receivable 14,609 (245,068)

Prepaid expenses (5,034) (1 1,575)

Under applied overhead 67,750 46,174

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable 199,288 (38,707)

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (56,907) (227,656)

Accrued compensated absences 13,852 19,686

Accrued other liabilities (10,309) (231,349)

Refundable advances (280,355) 171,410

Over applied overhead 27,739 •

Tenant security deposits 2,430 (3.501)

Total adjustments 1,141,417 (1,194.912)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,128,406 635,006

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (1,430,211) (51 1,155)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 16,500 4,170

Purchase of investments, reinvested dividends, and capital gains (307,794) (269,044)

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,000,000 -

Deposit to restricted cash accounts (8,842) (191,550)

Cash received on acquisition of housing project - 256,536

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (730,347) (71 1,043)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on long-term debt (111,363) (1 13,517)

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,286,696 (189,554)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,699,842 5,889,396

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR S  6,986,538 $ 5,699,842

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2019

Cash paid during the year for interest

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of low-income housing projects:
Other current assets

Properly and equipment
Other liabilities

Notes payable

72,259

2018

55,505

3,677

1,106,200

(1,64,006)
(918,763)

- (256,536)

Cash received on acquisition - 256,536

$ $ - I

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

10



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY3I,2019AND20I8

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Organization
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in New Hampshire's Hillsborough
County and Rockingham County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the areas of
education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing and homelessness
prevention. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of
poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental contracts. Services are
provided through Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation
The Organization prepares its combined financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which involves the application of
accrual accounting; and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other
liabilities. The financial statement presentation follows the recommendation of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-For-
Profit Enlilies (Topic 958): Preservation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Under
ASU 2016-14, net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the board of directors.

Net As.iets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors,
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions
to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization has no net assets with donor restrictions at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Combined Financial Statements

All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic combined
financial statements. The combined financial statements include the accounts of SNHS

Management Corporation because Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. controls more than 50%
of the voting power.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,2019 AND 2018

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the combined statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all
unrestricted highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Current Vulnerabilities Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions located in New

Hampshire and Maine. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization
(FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution. In addition, on October 2, 2008, the Organization
entered into an agreement with its principal banking partner to collateralize deposits in excess of the
FDIC insurance limitation on some accounts. The balances, at times, may exceed amounts covered
by the FDIC and collateralization agreements. It is the opinion of management that there is no
significant risk with respect to these deposits at either July 31, 2019 or 2018.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Receivables are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting
primarily based on reimbursable contracts, grants and agreements. Balances outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to bad debt
expense and a credit to the applicable accounts receivable. Management does not believe an
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is necessary at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Revenue Recognition
The Organization's revenue is recognized primarily from federal and stale grants and contracts
generally structured as reimbursed contracts for services and therefore revenue is recognized based
on when their individual allowable budgeted expenditures occur. Refundable advances result from
unexpended balances from these exchange transactions. Federal and state grant revenue comprised
approximately 91% and 90% of total revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Contributions and In-Kind Donations

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor
restrictions. If the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions,
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated
lime restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the combined statements of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. In-kind revenues and expenses represent fair
market value of volunteer services and non-paid goods which were donated to the Organization
during the current fiscal year. All in-kind revenues in the fiscal year 2019 and 2018 were generated
through the Head Start and Economic Workforce Development programs. Since the recognition
criteria is not met, no in-kind revenues are recognized as contributions in the combined financial
statements and the in-kind expenses have been eliminated.

12



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY31,2019 AND 2018

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values
and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the combined statements of financial

position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying
combined statements of activities.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets acquired by the Organization are capitalized at cost if purchased or fair value if
donated. It is the Organization's policy to capitalize expenditures for these items in excess of
$5,000. Major additions and renewals are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which range from three to forty years. Depreciation expense for July 31, 2019 and
2018 was $499,974 and $427,069, respectively.

Fixed assets purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program
for which they were purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, the various
funding sources have a reversionary interest in the fixed assets purchased with grant funds. The
disposition of fixed assets, as well as the ownership of any proceeds is subject to funding source
regulations.

Advertising
The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it serves. The
production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and
support services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and support services are
allocated directly according to their natural expenditure classification. Other expenses, that are
common to several functions, are allocated by management based on effort. Supporting services are
those related to operating and managing the Organization and its programs on a day-to-day basis.
Supporting services have been sub-classified as follows:

Management and General - includes all activities related to the Organization's internal
management.

Subsequent Events
Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events through February 12, 2020, which
represents the date on which the combined financial statements were available to be issued and
determined that any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure have been
considered in the preparation of these combined financial statements.

13



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Noi-for-Prqfil
Entities (Topic 958): Presentation ofFinancial Statements ofNot-for-Profit Entities. ASU 2016-14
requires significant changes to the financial reporting model of organizations who follow the not-
for-profit reporting model. The changes include reducing the classes of net assets from three to two
- net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. The ASU will also

require changes in the way certain information is aggregated and reported by the Organization,
including required disclosures about liquidity and availability of resources.

The new standard is effective for the Organization's year ending July 31, 2019 and thereafter and
must be applied on a retrospective basis. The Organization adopted the ASU elTective August 1,
2018. Adoption of the ASU did not result in any reclassifications or restatements of net assets or
changes in net assets.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to clarify the principles for
recognizing revenue and to develop a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards. The core principle of the guidance requires entities to recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The guidance is effective for the Organization's year ending July 31, 2020. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial statements.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB released ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which provides users of
the financial statements a more accurate picture of the assets and the long-term financial obligations
of organizations that lease. The standard is for a dual-model approach; a lessee will account for
most existing capita! leases as Type A leases, and most existing operating leases as Type B leases!
Both will be reported on the statement of financial condition of the organization for leases with a
term exceeding 12 months. Lessors will see changes as well, primarily made to align with the
revised model. The guidance is effective for the Organization's year ended July 30, 2022.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial
statements.

14



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2: RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization, as stipulated in many of the loan agreements associated with the housing projects
included in SNHS Management Corporation, is required to maintain separate accounts and make
monthly deposits into certain restricted reserves for the replacement of property and other
expenditures. In addition, the Organization is required to maintain separate accounts for tenant
security deposits and any surplus cash that may result from annual operations. These accounts are
also not available for operating purposes and generally need additional approval from overslte
agencies before withdrawal and use of these funds can occur.

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuation techniques maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification 820, Fair Value Measuremenis, are described as follows:

Level I: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the organization has
the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such
as:

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets;

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability;

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2
input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at July 31, 2019 and 2018.

Mutual Funds-. Valued at the net asset value of shares held on the last trading day of the
fiscal year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS fContinued)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets at
fair value as of July 31, 2019 and 2018: ^

2019

Mutual Funds

(Level 1)

S8.405.690

(Level 2) (Level 3)

$.

Total

2018

Mutual Funds

(Level n

S9.Q85.663

(Level 2") (Level 3)

$-

Total

S9.085.663

NOTE 4: INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments as of July 31:

2019 2018

Cost

Fair

Market Unrealized

Value Gains Cost

Fair

Market Unrealized
Value Gains

Mutual Funds S 92.622 S9.005.274 S9.085.663 S 80.389

The activities of the Organization's investment account are summarized as follows:

Fair Value - Beginning of Year
Dividends and Capital Gains
Sale of Investments

Unrealized Gains

Fair Value - End of Year

2019

$9,085,663
307,794

(1,000,000)
12.233

$8:405.690

2018

$8,375,305
269,044

441.314

S9.085.663
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3E2019AND 2018

NOTES: AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The Organization's financial assets available for expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date comprise
the following as of July 31, 2019:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Conlracls Receivable

Accounts Receivable

Total financial assets available within one year

Total financial assets available within one year

$ 6,986,538

8,405,690

3,488,413

821.565

19.702.206

$19.702.206

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions. Accordingly, all such
funds are available to meet the needs of the Organization in the next 12 months. In addition, the
Organization maintains several reserve funds for property taxes, insurance expenses, and repair and
replacement or emergency needs which are required by financing autliorities. These funds may be
withdrawn only with the approval of the financing authority and are not considered by the Organization
to have donor restrictions.

NOTE 6:

The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual operating budgets that
provide sufficient funds for general expenditures in meeting its liabilities and other obligations as
they become due.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt as of July 31:
2019 20J8

SNHS. Inc.

Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured by real
estate located in Manchester, NH. A balloon payment of
$1 1,275 was due on June 30, 2010. Interest is at 0.000%.
SNHS, Inc. is currently negotiating with the City of
Manchester to write off this debt. S 11,275 $ 1 1,275

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Temple St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of $1,833 plus interest through 2020. Interest is
at 4.984% and 4.000% at July 31. 2019 and 2018. 238.669 260.669

Subtotal $ 249.944 $ 271.944
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,20I9AND20I8

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
2019 2018

Subtotal Carried Forward $ 249.944 $ 271.944

SNHS Management Corporation

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located on Pleasant St., Epping, NH,
payable in monthly irtstallmenls of $1,084 including interest
through 2042. Interest is at 3.500%. 200,514 206,400

Mortgage payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually. 900,000 900,000

Note payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually. 20,000 20,000

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Community Loan
Fund secured by real estate located on. Vine St., Nashua,
NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only if real estate remains
low Income housing for 30 years. Interest is at 10.000%,
forgiven annually. 250,000 250,000

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
West Pearl St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only
if real estate remains low income housing for 40 years.
Interest is at 0.000%. 170,000 170,000

Mortgage payable to bank secured by real estate located on
Silver St., Manchester, NH, payable in monthly installments
of $2,619 including interest through 2019. Interest is at
3.750%. - 15,661

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Allds St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of $2,613 plus interest through 2021. Interest is
at 4.980% and 4.832% at July 31, 2019 and 2018. 57,487 88,844

Mortgage payable to MH Parsons and Sons Lumber, secured
by real estate located in Derry, NH, payable in monthly
installments of $3,715 including interest through 2031.
Interest is at 5.500%. 396.455 418.612

Subtotal $2.244.400 $2.341.461



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY31,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Subtotal Carried Forward

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $3,327 including interest through
2033. Interest is at 7.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Less: Current Portion

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

2019

$2,244.400

358,114

392,924

150.000

3,145,438

109.413

S:3.fl36.025

$  109,413

290,223

50,228

53,206

56,366

2.586.002

2018

$2.341.461

372,416

392,924

150.000

3,256,801

122.582

S3.I34.2I9

Total



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3E2019AND20I8

NOTE 7: OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases various facilities and equipment under several operating leases. Total
lease payments for the years ended July 31, 2019 and 2018 equaled $686,840 and $708,379,
respectively. The leases expire at various times through October 2020. Some of the leases contain
renewal options that are contingent upon federal funding and some contain renewal options subject
to renegotiation of lease terms.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for the operating leases as of July
31,2019:

2020

2021

Total

$319,979

33.189

$i^lM

NOTES: RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 403(b) plan offering coverage to all of its
employees. Participating employees must contribute at least 1% of their wages, while the
Organization contributes 10% of their wages. The pension expense for the years ended July 31,
2019 and 2018 was $861,928 and $838,296, respectively.

NOTE 9: RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and
local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject to
change by an act of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to
comply with a change.

NOTE 10: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Organization receives contract funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes
specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds.
No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not yet
been determined.

Cotton Mill Square

In 2015, SNHS Management Corporation entered into a contract as part of the Community
Development Investment Tax Credit Program with the Community Development Finance Authority
(CDFA) and was awarded $ 1,000,000 to provide funding for the development and adaptive reuse of
an abandoned historic cotton mill in downtown Nashua, NH. Under this program, the Project
(Cotton Mill Square) created 109 units of housing and was required to reserve 55 of these units for
low to moderate income households.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY3I,20I9AND20I8

NOTE 10: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Cotton Mill Square (Continued)

As stipulated by the contract and after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA, SNHS
Management Corporation entered into a subrecipient agreement with the owners of the Project
(Cotton Mill Square LLC) to provide a promissory note and mortgage of the remaining award
amount of $800,000. The 20 year note to Cotton Mill Square LLC is non-interest bearing and the
principal is forgivable at a rate of 5% each year the Project maintains the required minimum of 55
low to moderate income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occupancy on August 22, 2014 and
remains in full compliance with the required regulations as of July 31, 2019 and 2018. SNHS
Management Corporation feels that it is extremely unlikely that the Project will fall into
noncompliance in future periods. Therefore, SNHS Management Corporation has not recorded
any contingent receivable or liability related to this transaction. The note repayment is
accelerated if the units fall out of compliance.

In October of 2017, the subrecipient agreement with Cotton Mill Square LLC was amended to
cease the annual 5% debt forgiveness. This modification effectively holds the promissory note
balance at $720,000 which will now be forgiven in full at the end of the agreement as long as the
Project maintains compliance with the original agreement's terms. This modification did not
change the contingent receivable or liability with SNHS Management Corporation.

J. Brown Homestead Propertv

On July I, 20I I, Rockingham Community Acton (RCA) was acquired by SNHS. As part of this
merger, SNHS assumed all the assets, liabilities and obligations of RCA which included the J.
Brown Homestead Property.

The J. Brown Homestead Property was conveyed to RCA in 1999 by the Town of Raymond for $ I
and a mortgage lien of $604,418. The property contains four apartments limited to low-income
seniors, office space for the Outreach operations, space for the Food Pantry operation, and a
common meeting room for use by Town of Raymond organizations. The Town of Raymond
included a requirement that the property be used for a social service center for a period of 20 years,
called the benefit period, after which this requirement terminates.

In the event that SNHS sells or otherwise conveys the property within the benefit period, the
remaining lien will be either paid from the proceeds of the sale or remain with the land to any
subsequent purchaser for the remaining benefit period.

This mortgage lien has no scheduled principal or interest payments and is forgivable at a rate of 5%
each year of the benefit period until it is completely forgiven in year 2019. The value of this lien at
July 31, 2019 and 2018 is $30,221 and $60,442, respectively. SNHS has no plans to sell or transfer
this property. Therefore, the contingent mortgage lien liability has riot been included in the financial
statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY31,2019AND2018

NOTE 11: ACOUISTIONS OF LOW-INCOME HOUSING PROJECTS

During 2017, SNHS Management Corporation acquired SNHS Deerfield Elderly Housing Limited
Partnership (Sherbume Woods), located in Deerfield, NH. SNHS Management Corporation
obtained the project operations and assumed all assets, liabilities, debt and equity for the project at
fair market value. The acquisition and allocation of the project was as follows:

Cash $ 256,536
Other Current Assets 3,677

Property and Equipment 1,106,200
Current Liabilities" (164,006)
Notes Payable (918,763)
Equity Acquired (Contribution) (283.644)
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INDEPENDENT A UDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA TION

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. (a nonprofit
organization) and affiliate as of and for the years ended July 31, 2019 and 2018, and our report thereon dated
February 12, 2020, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements, appears on
page I. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as
a whole.

The combining information in Schedules A and B (pages 24-25), the schedules of revenues and expenses - by
contract (pages 26-30), required by the Slate of New Hampshire Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives, and the
required schedules and financial information for Whispering Pines II, J.B. Milette Manor, and Sherburne Woods
(pages 31-50), required by the New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the combined financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to.prepare the combined financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial
statements as a whole.

OueOiette ̂ ,^ociates, <P,^
Certified Public Accountants

February 12, 2020
Lewiston, Maine

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Schedule A

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31.201?

SNHS

Management

SNHS, Inc. Corporation Sub-Total Elimination Total

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $  138.227 $  6.848.311 $  6.986.538 $  - $ 6.986.538

Investments - 8,405,690 8,405.690 - 8,405,690

Contracts receivable 3,485.878 2,535 3.488.413 - 3.488,413

Accounts receivable - 821.565 821.565 - 821,565

Prepaid expenses 49,279 45,918 95,197
-

95,197

Due from other corporations 3.576.334 (187.656) 3.388.678 (3.388.678) .

Total current assets 7,249.718 15.936.363 23.186.081 (3,388.678) 19.797,403

FIXED ASSETS

Land 266.860 2.431.008 2.697.868 - 2.697,868

Buildings and improvements 1.724.046 10.806.515 12.530.561 • 12.530,561

Vehicles and equipment 1.091.613 323,658 1,415,271 . 1,415,271

Total fixed assets 3,082.519 13.561.181 16.643.700 - 16,643,700

Less • accumulated depreciation 1.371.135 3,866,003 5.237.138 . 5,237,138

Net fixed assets 1,711,384 9,695,178 11,406,562 . 1 i .406,562

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cosh 27.603 383,977 411.580 . 411.580

TOTAL ASSETS $  8,988.705 $ 26,015,518 $ 35.004,223 $  (3,388,678) $ 31,615,545

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued other liabilities

Refundable advances

Over applied overhead

Tenant security deposits

Due to other corporations

$  33,275

556,554

160.191

134.613

908.744

27.739

26,941

2.277.364

S  76,138

101,122

885.614

359.819

93,090

119.999

57,290

1,1 11,314

$  109,413

657,676

1.045.805

359,819

227,703

1.028.743

27.739

84,231

3.388.678

$  - $

(3.388.678)

109,413

657,676

1,045,805

359,819

227,703

1.028,743

27.739

84,231

Total current liabilities 4,125.421 2.804.386 6.929.807 (3.388.678) 3.541,129

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion 216.669 2.819.356 3.036.025 3.036,025

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4.342.090 5.623.742 9,965.832 (3,388.678) 6,577,154

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 4,646.615 20.391.776 25.038.391 25.038,391

TOTAL LIABILITIF,S AND NET ASSETS $  8,988.705 $ 26.015.518 $ 35.004.223 $  (3,388.678) $ 31.615,545
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Schedule B

SOUTHERN NEW HAMI'SHiRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

SNHS

Management

SNHS. Inc. Corporation Sub-Total Elimination Total

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant/conlrac( revenue $ 37,485,052 $ $  37,485,052 $  (20,438) $ 37.464,614

Program service fees 55,802 851.758 907,560 - 907,560

Local funding -
242.894 242,894

-
242,894

Rental income - 1.191,372 1.191,372
-

1.191,372

GiRs and contributions 192,066 16,662 208,728
-

208,728

Interest Income 169 314,385 314,554
-

314,554

Unrealized gain on investments - 12,233 12,233
-

12,233

In-kind 2,248,292 - 2,248,292 (2,248.292) -

Miscellaneous 561,114 296,218 857,332 (137.208) 720,124

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 40,542,495 2,925,522 43,468,017 (2,405.938) 41,062,079

EXPENSF^

Program services;

Child Development 10,883,653
-

10,883,653 (2,293.788) 8,589,865

Community Services 1,562,440 - 1,562,440 (31,766) 1,530.674

Economic and Workforce Dev. 7,028,880 - 7,028.880 (44,196) 6,984.684

Energy 13,442,609
-

13,442,609 (28,328) 13,414.281

Language and Literacy 436,073
-

436,073
-

436,073

Housing and Homeless 263.240 - 263,240 • 263.240

Nutrition and Health 2,535,355 - 2,535,355 (7.860) 2,527.495

Special Projects 1,768,326
-

1,768,326
-

1,768.326

Volunteer Services 125.050 - 125,050 - 125.050

SNHS Management Corporation . 2,396,939 2,396,939 - 2,396,939

Total program services 38,045.626 2,396,939 40,442,565 (2,405,938) 38,036,627

Support services:

Management and general 2,038,463 - 2,038,463 - 2,038.463

TOTAL EXPENSES 40,084.089 2,396,939 42,481,028 (2,405,938) 40,075.090

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 458.406 528,583 986,989
-

986.989

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,188,209 19,863,193 24,051,402 _ 24,051,402

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $  4,646,615 $  20,391,776 $ 25,038,391 $  - S 25,038.391
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

^  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 20 i 9

State of NH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

Headstart Program

For the Period

August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2019

Fund #305

REVENUES

Program funding

]n->kind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

5,039,103

1,814,481

6,836

6,860,420

EXPENSES

Payroll 2,697,294

Payroll taxes 218,305

Fringe benefits 780,937

Workers comp. insurance 60,479

Retirement benefits 153,904

Consultant and contractual 17,613

Travel and transportation 60,852

Occupancy 287,314

Advertising 2,526

Supplies 152,726

Equip, rentals and maintenance 3,510

Insurance 14,273

Telephone 33,563

Postage 1,974

Printing and publications 4,732

Depreciation ,  12,1 14

Assistance to clients 7,800

Other expense 75,688

Miscellaneous 1 1,663

In>kind 1,814,481

Administrative costs 448,672

Total expenses 6,860,420

Excess of expenses over revenue
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

Slate ofNH Governor's Ofilce of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

October 1, 2018 to July 31, 2019

Fund # 630-18

REVENUES

Program funding

Other revenue

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

9.747.059

32,647

2,351

9,782,057

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Conference and meetings

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Program support

Depreciation

Assistance to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

373,879

30,932

124,779

1,142

20,174

19,965

6,194

333

44,865

213

20,929

2,026

982

8,025

17,592

228

28,048

5.158

9,010,973

344

830

64,446

9,782,057
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019
r

Stale ofNH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

August 1, 2018 to September 30, 2018

Fund # 630-17

REVENUES

Program funding $ 160,224

Total revenue ^ 160,224

EXPENSES

Payroll 77,917

Payroll taxes 6,149

Fringe benefits 21,229
Workers comp. insurance 241

Retirement benefits 3,615

Consultant and contractual 5,940

Travel and transportation 1,465

Occupancy 10,321

Supplies 4,820

Equip, rentals and maintenance 651

Insurance 71 1

Telephone 1,467

Postage 786
Program support 6,779

Assistance to clients 3,254

Other expense 1,495

Miscellaneous 257

Administrative costs 13,127

Total expenses 160,224

Excess of expenses over revenue _$
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

State ofNH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

Early Headstart Program

For the Period

August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2019

Fund U 300

REVENUES

Program funding

In-kind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

,370,247

342,470

3,013

.715,730

EXPENSES

Payroll 716,548

Payroll taxes 57,878

Fringe benefits 168,507

Workers comp. insurance 15,925

Retirement benefits 29,603

Consultant and contractual 3,392

Travel and transportation 7,089

Occupancy 112,627

Advertising 876

Supplies 42,1 13

Equip, rentals and maintenance 1,106

Insurance 2,465

Telephone 22,665

Postage 55

Printing and publications 536

Interest 12,995

Depreciation 25,036

Other expense 30,647

Miscellaneous 2,770

In-kind 342,470

Administrative costs 120,427

Total expenses 1,715,730

Excess of expenses over revenue
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Electric Energy Assistance

For the Period

August I, 2018 to July 31, 2019

Fund M 665

REVENUES

Other revenue

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

716,563

37,230

153,792

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Conference and meetings

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Depreciation

Other expense

Miscellaneous

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

399,246

32,852

102,830

1,315

17,554

24,257

4,788

333

54,763

138

23,231

2,677

1,606

9,558

1 1,355

228

600

344

466

65,652

753,793
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY; EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I,20I9AND2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Tenant Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Rental Property

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019 2018

$ 18,732 28,635

509

6,035 6,035

24,767 35,179

13,294 12,708

30,028 36,414

78,399 76,953

23,456 7,270

4,858 4,758

136,741 125,395

166,600 166,600

580,758 569,400

747,358 736,000

43,447 28,068

703,911 707,932

s 878,713 $  881,214

1

$ 6,096 $  5,886

1,734 2,729

944 62

8,774 8,677

13,294 12,708

32,103 15,947

194,418 200,514

226,521 216,461

248,589 237,846

630,124 643,368

$ 878,713 $  881,214
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WHISPERING PINES 11

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Other Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

Interest Income - Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Expenses

Total Expenses

2019

172,681

2,235

1,470

15

2,490

178,891

50,777

43,570

41,670

15,380

7,130

33,608

2018

172,715

2,215

7,555

30

1,296

183,811

21,821

33,879

63,734

14,316

7,332

33,966

192,135 175,048

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

(13,244)

643,368

8,763

634,605

$  630,124 $ 643,368
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

2019 2018

S $  8

14,400 14,400

20,002 2,209

3,415 126

6,120 -

- 69

3,128 2,973

3,712 2,036

50,777 21,821

19,750 18,406

13,124 7,655

10,214 7,818

482 -

43,570 33,879

692 320

2,160 1,260

10,296 16,710

- 1,150

2,764 2,920

25,758 17,374

- 24,000

41,670 63,734

15,380 14,316

7,130 7,332

24,293 28,877

1,612 203

1,871 -

1,064 1 18

4,768 4,768

33,608 33,966

S  192,135 $  175,048

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Advertising

Management Fees

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Investment Fee

Legal Expenses
Telephone

Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Utilities

Electricity

Fuel

Water and Sewer

Other Utility Expense

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies

Trash Removal

Snow Removal

Grounds/Landscaping

Elevator Repairs and Contract

Repairs (Materials)

Operation (Contract)

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Depreciation

Interest - NHHFA Mortga2e Note

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Retirement Benefits

Workman's Compensation

Insurance

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATCS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECTNo. AI9999I-046)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Income

Tcnani Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Operations Receiots

Exrxnses v

Administrative

Utilities

MainlcnaiKc

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note
Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Operations Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

ARcr Debt Service

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Aaent

Owner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and ILscrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and liscrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Rcoavment of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Securitv Deposit Account

$  153.454

19.736

2.235

IS

1,470

49,895

43.570

42.665

7.130

33,608

5.886

16.156

46.320

55.176

1 1,359

$  173,190

176.910

(176.868)

42

(5,844)

62.476

66,535

Net Increase or (Decrease) in Project Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

(9.903)

28.635

18,732

Composition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year 18.732

P^ltY CKh

Decorating Reserve
Operating Reserve
Other Reserve

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Project Account Cash

at End of Year S  18.732
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WHISPERING PINES II

(PORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTNo, AI99991^6)

SCHEDULE 01- RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2018

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

OtiKr Income

ToiitI Rental Qncrations Receipts

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note
Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Toml Rental Operations Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization ofMoncaee

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Alter Debt Service

$  153.261

18.975

2.215

30

7,555

20,657

33,879

71,119

7,332

33.966

5.684

$  172,236

182,036

(166,953)

15.083

9,399

OTHER RECEIITS

Due to Management Aeent

Ou-ner Advanees

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

(26.475)

46.158

38,810

19,683

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Reoavmcnt of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

19.300

58,110

Net Increase or (Decreasct in Proiect Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Composition of Proiect Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

(29,028)

57,663

28.635

28.635

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve

Other Reserve

Total Pettv Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Proiect Account Cash

at End of Year $  28,635
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve t

Operating Reserve

4,758

7,270

36,414

76,953

4,800

40,176

10,200

67

302

675

.446

4,767

24,292

17,261

4,858

23,456

30,028

78,399

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $  125,395 $ 55,176 $ 2,490 $ 46,320 $ 136,741

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31, 2019

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

(13,244)

15,380

5,886

10,200

17,261

3,31 1
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2001 $  243,855 $ $  243,855

12/31/2002 $  243,855 $ $  487,710

12/31/2003 $  243,855 $  5,895 $ ■ 725,670

12/31/2004 $  243,855 $  7,200 $  962,325

12/31/2005 $  243,855 $ $  1,206,180

12/31/2006 $  243,855 $  6,120 $  1,443,915

12/31/2007 $  243,855 $ $  1,687,770

•12/31/2008 ■ $ 243,855 $ $  1,931,625

12/31/2009 $  243,855 $ $  2,175,480

12/31/2010 $  243,855 $ $  2,419,335

12/31/201 1 $  243,855 $ $  2,663,190

12/31/2012 $  243,855 $ $  2,907,045

12/31/2013 $  243,855 $  7,200 $  3,143,700

12/31/2014 $  243,855 $ $  3,387,555

12/31/2015 $  243,855 $ $  3,631,410

7/31/2016 $  142,249 $ $  3,773,659

7/31/2017 $  243,855 $ $  4,017,514

7/31/2018 $  243,855 $

—\

$  4,261,369

7/31/2019 $  243,855 $ $  4,505,224
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations S 17,001 $  37,774

Prepaid Expenses 6,880 8,618

Total Current Assets 23,881 46,392

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits 15,764 15,755

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve 154,554 138,851

Operating Reserve 96,431 96,364

Tax Escrow 6,543 6,538

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves 257,528 241,753

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land 176,000 176,000

Building and Building Improvements 1,071,375 1,071,375

Total Rental Property 1,247,375 1,247,375

Less Accumulated Depreciation 89,879 62,422

Net Rental Property 1,157,496 1,184,953

TOTAL ASSETS s 1,454,669 $  1,488,853

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable s 1,355 $  3,545

Accrued Expenses 430 282

Total Current Liabilities 1,785 3,827

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability 15,781 15,772

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to AfTiliate 45,617 40,657

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion 1,170,000 1,170,000

Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,215,617 1,210,657

Total Liabilities 1,233,183 1,230,256

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 221,486 258,597

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 1,454,669 $  1,488,853
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY; J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

Interest Income - Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

General Expenses

Total Expenses

20J9

208,237

1,274

15

175

209,701

71,428

59,196

59,672

27,458

29,058

2018

207,802

1,228

33

142

209,205

80,209

61,477

34,774

27,009

49,818

246,812 253,287

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

(37,111)

258,597

(44,082)

302,679

S  221,486 $ 258,597
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND 2018

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Advertising

Management Fees

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Audit and Accounting Expense

Legal Expenses

Telephone

Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Utilities

Electricity

Fuel

Water and Sewer

Other Utility Expense

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies

Trash Removal

Snow Removal

Grounds/Landscaping

Elevator Repairs and Contract

Repairs (Materials)

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Depreciation

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Workman's Compensation

Retirement Benefits

Insurance

^ TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

2019 2018

350

17,688

31,953

10,362

400

253

1,431

8,991

71,428

33,814

15,853

8,733

796

59,196

1,726

3,615

4,242

3,100

4,835

42,154

50

17,818

42,606

12,930

800

1,173

1,601

3,231

80,209

39,427

13,413

7,728

909

61,477

1,605

2,160

3,450

2,204

5,912

19,443

59,672 34,774

27,458 27,009

17,040 34,599

2,613 3,651

1,102 1,866

- 1,283

8,303 8,419

29,058 49,818

$  246,812 :S  253,287
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J.B, MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETLE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJULy31.2019

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rental Operations

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Expenses

Administrative y

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Operations Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortiyjlion of Mortaagc

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Af\er Debt Service

$  177,824

30,413

1,274

15

69,543

59,196

61,862

29,058

$  208.237

209.526

(219,659)

(10,133)

(10,133)

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Agent

Q^-ner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reseivcs

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Repayment of Chvncr Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

4,960

15,600

4,960

15,600

Net Increase or (Decrease) in Project Account Cash

Proiect Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Proicct Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Composition of Proiect Account Cash

Baltince nt End of Year

Petty Cash

Unrestricted Reserve (if applicable)

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reseive

Other Reserve

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

(20,773)

37,774

17,001

17,001

Total Proiect Account Cash

at End of Year 17,001

41



J.B. MILinTE MANOR

(FORMERLY; J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIH S AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Renial Operations

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Ineome

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Oocmlions Receipts

S  177.836

29,966

1,228

33

S  207,802

209,063

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest - Other Notes

General

CXher

Total Rental Otxralions Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations .

AAer Debt Service

81,918

61.477

34,907

49.818

(228.120)

(19,057)

(19,057)

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Agent

O^-ncr Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Resen-cs

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Reoavment of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Dectosit Account

(22,427)

15,599

8,975

(21)

(22,427)

24.553

Net Increase or (Decrease) in Project Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Comnosition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

(66,037)

103,81 1

37,774

37,774

Petty Cwh

Unrestricted Reserve (if ant^licable)

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve

Other Reserve

Total Pettv Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Project Account Cash

at End of Year $  37,774
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

$  6,538

138,851

96,364

5,600

5

103

67

$  6,543

154,554

96,431

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $  241,753 $ 15,600 $ 175 $ $  257,528

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31, 2019

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCTNHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

(37,1 1 1)

27,458

15,600

$  (25,253)
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY3I,2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Prepaid Expenses

$ 91,630

6,318

$  56,958

6,623

Total Cun-ent Assets 97,948 63,581

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits 15,855 16,600

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

124,871 -

67,111

11,877

3,581

1 11,486

65,873

9,31 1

3,802

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves 207,440 190,472

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

211,000

907,200

21 1,000

895,200

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation

1,118,200

28,775

1,106,200

5,595

Net Rental Property 1,089,425 1,100,605

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,410,668 $  1,371,258

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

$ 15,344

4,240

194

$  14,309

2,410

1 17

Total Current Liabilities 19,778 16,836

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability 15,805 16,600

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

131,432

885,694

136,698

901,031

Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,017,126 1,037,729

Total Liabilities 1,052,709 1,071,165

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 357,959 300,093

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,410,668 $  1,371,258
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2019 AND THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 20!

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Donation

Other Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

Interest Income - Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Expenses

Total Expenses

2019

260,808

2,640

1,070

56

3,633

268,207

38,625

35,850

55,722

23,180

25,616

31,348

2018

66,083

670

283,644

582

9

611

351,665

1 1,228

6,553

12,698

5,595

6,557

8,941

210,341 51,572

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

57,866

300,093

300,093

$  357,959 $ 300,093
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PEA 901 -02-05)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019 AND THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2018

EXPENSES:

Administrative

2019 2018

Advertising S  125 $ -

Management Fees 20,872 4,500

Salaries and Wages 8,526 3,417

Fringe Benefits 3,021 1,036

Audit and Accounting Expense 75 925

Telephone 2,291 572

Other Administrative Expense 3,715 778

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 38,625 1 1,228

Utilities

Electricity 20,577 4,442

Fuel 8,898 1,334

Water and Sewer 4,597 200

Other Utility Expense 1,778 577

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 35,850 6,553

Maintenance

Trash Removal 1,523 525

Snow Removal 25,123 -

Grounds/Landscaping 292 431

Repairs (Materials) 28,784 I I,742

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 55,722 12,698

Depreciation 23,180 5,595

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note 25,616 6,557

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes 25,184 6,938

Payroll Taxes 714 287

Workman's Compensation 454 182

Retirement benefits 228 342

Insurance 4,768 1,192

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 31,348 8,941

TOTAL EXPENSES S  210,341 $ 51,572
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY; SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 3 i. 2019

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rental Oocralions

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Operations Receipts

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Operations Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Otxrations

After Debt Service

$  119.235

141,573

2.640

56

1,070

38,243

35,850

53,892

25,616

31,348

14,302

S  260.808

264.574

(184,949)

79.625

65.323

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Agent

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrotvs

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Rcsen.-es

and Escro^-s

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Reoavmcnl of ONs-ncr Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

43.443

56,778

12.000

5.266

50

43.443

74,094

Net Increase or (Decrease) in Project Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Comtwsition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

34.672

56,958

91,630

91,630

Unrestricted Reserve (ifaDPlicablet

Decorating Reserve
Operating Rcscr\'c
Other Reserve

Total Petiv Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Project Account Cash

at End of Year 91,630
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERF1ELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02.05)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31. 2018

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Income

Tcnanl Paid Rcm

HAP Rcni Subsidy

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Totol Rental Operations Receipts

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest • NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest • Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Oocfaiions Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

After Debt Service

$  31.338

34.745

670

582

14.673

6.553

13.836

6.557

8.941

3.423

$  66.083

67.344

(50.560)

16.784

13.361

OTHER RECEIPTS

I>uc 10 Management Agent

Owner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and ILscrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Rescn'es

and Escrows

Ptirchase of Fixed Assets

Rcoavment of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

(7.046)

13.9)0

12.881

6.864

12.881

Net Increa.sc or fDecrca.set in Proicct Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Proicct Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Composition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

7.344

49.614

56.958

56.958

i>ettv Cash

Unre.stricted Reserve (if opplicablet

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve

Other Reserve

Total Petiv Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Proicct Account Cash

at End of Year $  56.958
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

3,802 $ 4,500 $

9,31 1

1 1 1,486

65,873

29,028

23,250

46 $ 4,767

214

2,135

1 ,238

26,676

12,000

3,581

1 1,877

124,871

67,1 1 1

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $ 190,472 $ 56,778 $ 3,633 $ 43,443 $ 207,440

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY3I,20I9

NET INCOME

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

57,866

23,180

14,302

23,250

12,000

$  55,494
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERF1ELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2019

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2003 1 13,850 $ 1 13,850

12/31/2004 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 227,700

12/31/2005 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 341,550

12/31/2006 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 455,400

12/31/2007 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 569,250

12/31/2008 $ 1  13,850 $ $ 683,100

12/31/2009 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 796,950

12/31/2010 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 910,800

12/31/201 1 $ 1 13,850 S $ 1,024,650

12/31/2012 $ 1 13,850 S $ 1,138,500

12/31/2013 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,252,350

12/31/2014 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,366,200

12/31/2015 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,480,050

12/30/2016 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,593,900

12/30/2017 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,707,750

7/3I/20I8 $ 66,413 $ $ 1,774,163

7/31/2019 $ 1 13,850 $ $ 1,888,013
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SOClTHEiRN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVIGES. INC.
'PO Box 6040,.Manchester, NH 0310i3 - (603)568-8010

The'Cgmmunfty Acticm Partnership^fw HiUsborbugh and Courities

'BOARD.'CF P|RECTPRS"r..as of SepterhbLer -2020

Public Sector Private Sector- Low-Income Sector HS Policy Council
ReDrese'ntina Manchester Rebfeseritlna Manchester Rebresehtind Manchesteri

Alicia Webber

Term beginsJli/lS

Lou D')^Iesaridr6 \nce Chair

ton! Pappas

Peter-Ramsey.

;i;erm:'4/i^9/21

Carrie Marahall Gross

Term:- ̂ 0-9/23:

James Brown

9/18^9/2-1

Oryllle Kern S^reta^

Term:9/i'8-9/2i

Anna Haniel

Terfii ExplreS'Sept: 2022Rebresehtind Nashua Rebfesehtiha Nashua

Kevin Mdrlarty Treasurer Dolores Bellavanpe, Chalnha^n

Term: 9/1^9/21 Rebresehtinq Nashua

Bonnie Hehault

Term:: 9/17.-9/21

Shirley Pelletier

Term: 9/17-9/21Rebfeseritinq Towns Representina'Towns:

Thomas Mullins German J; Ortjz

Xerm^ 9/20^9/23 ReDresentind Towns

-

ReDresentind Rockihaham Cduntv > Rebresentind^Rockindham Cduntv

Rep; Sherman Packard

jr> RebreseritiridRdckindham County



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVi:CES,.(NG,
TheXommunity Action Partnership serving HiJIsborpugh and RpckinghamXpunties

Mailing Address: Pp Box;5,040, Manchester; NH 03,108
40 pine Street,.Manchesier/'NH 03*0l3

Tejephone: {603) ;668-801G: FAX: :(6,03) 64^6734

BWP21

List of Key'Admlhlstrative'Personnel

Title Name Annual Salafy Percentage Amount

Executiyei'pirectbr Dbhh'alee Lozeau _ $190,6495 0.00% 0

Deputy. Director ■Ryan Clouthier- $115,606^ 0;,00,%: 0

Chief Financial Officer' James Chaisson :Sa29;620 :o'.G.o% 0



DON N ALEE.LOZEAU.

Community and
Civic Involvement-

Current

•  NH Community Action
Partnership;

•  HB4 Cliff Effect Working Group,
Co-chair

•  Goyernof's Office for
Emergency FReiief and
Recovery Stakeholders
Advisoiy Board, Chair

• Whole Family Approach to Jobs
NH Chapter. Co-chair

•  St.. Joseph Hospital Board of
Oirectp.rs

•  St. iMaiyls Bank Supervisory
Committw, Chair

•, NH Healthy.FamilieS'Board of
Directors

•  Mary's House; Advisory Board
•  The PlusiCompany
•  NH Tomorrow Leadership

Council

•  Eagle.ScoutBoardof Review
•  . American Gduncil of Young

Political Leaders, Alumni
Member

Community and
Civic Invoiveinent-
Past
Reaching Higher NH
NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

Governor's Judicial Selection

Commissfoh

Big Brothers Bjg Sisters Board ;of
Directors,.Past President
Statewide Workforce Innos^tioh
Board

Greater Nashua DehtaL
.Cdnriectioh BOD, Foundjrig
Memli.er
Great.American Dowritown,
Founding Member
Domestic Violence Coordinating
Council Nashua
US Conference of Mayors
No Labels

Fix the Debt

Experience

So.uthorn New Hampshlre Servlces, Inc.
Manchester, NH
(January 2016-Present)

Executive Director/CEO

•  Development and oversight of Community Action Partnership
serving NH's two largest counties, Hilisbbrough and
Rbcklhgharti.

•  Cooperation and engagement with local, state arid federal
agencies and or^ariizatldrib.on Issues and programs.'that
intersect with:the. Cornmunity Action Mission

• Work to.furidamentally enhance.the delivery of seivice:to
targeted commurii ty to wrap services around clients-and
streamline .^e application process by implementing the Whole
Family Approach

City, of Nashua, New Hampshire
(2008-2016)-Elected

.Mayor
•  Puil time overall daylo day management.arxJoperatjbnsof;?'*'

largest city in ttie of NH with deyelppmerit and
implementation of $245 miilionidollar (2016) annuarbiidget

• Worked elect^^board.s including Board pf Aldermen;
Public Works; Board of Education arid-others to prioritize .and

balance.budget requirements and the needs of the cpmrnunity
•  ehaired.Board of Public Works; and the Rhance^Gommittee
•  Successfully negotiated the GItys purchase of the publicly,

triced water company (Pennlchuck) after a prolonged case
before the NHPUC arid the NH Supreme Court

■Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
(1^93 - 2008) IManchester, NH
Director of Program and Community Development

•  Assessed the need for services throughout Hillsborough
County through community outreach by deyeioplng,
partnerships, collaborationsiand ne\y initiatives with-service
proylders;and businesses

•  Negotiated purchases arid contractS:arid presented projects
before local boards; cbrhriiissions,and;departmerits relative to
housjng, suppprt services and econornlc deyelpprrierit

•  Designed and implemented strategles for-developing
woritirig felatioriships with (o.wh arid .city officialis, local
service providers arid.appropriate private sector bfflclals iri'
order to project a positive Image of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc.

•  Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing for homeless
^women and developed 219 uriils of:Elderiy Housing

•  Pioneered inlliatlves for the CoriimunltylCorfectibris and
Academy Prograrris

•  Expanded,Head!Star1ServlceS)and developed the.-program
and secured the site for Economic Opportunity Center



PONNALEE LOZEAU
CONTINUED

Community and
Civic Involvement-

Past

•  NH Center for Public Policy
'Studies

•  Greater Nashua Ctiamber;of
•  Commerce; birecfor
•  Greater.Nashua yVorkforce

HousiriQ-Coalition,
Founding Member

•  Greater.Nashua.Asset
Building Coalition,.
Foundlrig Member

•  New"hjampsHife
Charitable Foundation

State Board; .Member

Education, arid

Training
•  CCAP- Certified Community

Action Professional

•  CCAP Proctor

•  Rivler Cdiiegev.Nashua-
Uridei^raduate work in
Pbiitical .Science

:• Restaurant Mariage'mehti
Jnsti&te

•  Mediatiori erid.Altemative
Dispute ResdlutidriTraihing:

•  .Ceaderehip Institute; Aspen
•  Justice, of-the Peace

NH State Representative, Hillsborough County, District 30
,(1984:^>20b0}

Deputy Speaker of the NH House;of Representatives
(1996:-2000)

• Addressed constituent cohcerris

.• Assisted Non-profit organizations and iocalbusinesses
with gdyerhmeritai.concetfis ahdisteering legislation'
through the pdilticarprdcessby wdrkih members
and ieadership.ih the Ni^ House" of Represeritatives arid
the NH Senate-a.nd representatives of the Executive
and Judicial branches

•  Managed floor debates'and supervised House Calendar
content

•  Responsible for functipnsofthe House on behalf of or iri;ihe
absence of the Speaker

:CoiTimittee:Assignments:
■' HdUse Rules Committee. Vice Chairman
•  House'Legi.siatiye.AdiTiiriistratiori Committee
•  Joint ffacljifies dpmniittee
•  NewMember/OrienJatjdn.-'Ghair
■. House.Corrections.and-Criminal Justice Committee;

Vice\Chalrman
■  HdusVJ.udiciaryCqrhrhlttee.
•  Grirninal Jusjjce Sub-Committee. Chailmah
•  State.and Federal Rejatipos Committee

lAppolhtments:
•• ^Jdiht.LegislativePe'rto'rmBrice Aliditiand.bversight.

Committee
•• Juvenile Justide Gomrnissjpn; Chairman
.• -Suprerne C^urt G'uardJan^Ad^Lite^
■  iSuperior Court Alternative Dispute'Resqlutipn

'Committee
•  '-Wdfl^lForceroppprturiity (^uricii
■  .Jnterbranch eriminai and Juyenlie^Justlc'e Cduricil

p  Subcomrnittee pn'bffenders; Ctiairmah
o  'Space and "Prison Prog rarn mjrig
o  Juveniles Subcommittee, Co^Chair

Natidhai Cphference of-.State Legislatures Law and
Justice, Vice Chair

■ Gpuncil of .State. Gdyemments lritergoyem
Ai^airsreqrrectionsi;ar)d Rubjic Safety

City'^Streets Restaurant, (1986-T99.1:
CltyStreetsfPihcr, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH
C.o-CSvnerfOperatpr
•  Operated 450;,seat restaurant and banquet facility arid"

effectively managed financial accounts, staff and,
licensing requirements



A

CLQUTHIER

OBJECTIVE

Seeing a leadership role which'will alibw me Ihc'opportunity |p utjliM and buildupohmylta and
pasiibn.fpr the wc^-pcrformcd by Goramunity.Action,Agencies in.the state of NewiHamp^irc; whilelat thc-
same time being"tlfe VupiMrt ̂ d ̂oigthTpr.the.Communiii^^ wc seive.

W EXPERIENCE
Deputy Director-1 Southern Nevy Hampshire.Services.Inc.;
.FEB,.2018-lil^.E^'
Serving as, part of the ExeOTtiye^Managemcnt Team is'.re^phsible.for providing inspiring leadcrsHip.tb the
Southern,htew, Hampshire Services (SNHS)!seoior;managcmCTt|;team;and dcyejoping a performance culture 'to
ch^ft the.efTi^iye/mahagcmeritpf "a comprehensive array of'bver sixty programs. The Deputy Director will be
the various'coraponent prognms mciudin^ hutrttion"; hbusingv.enefgyj workforce development; income
cnharicemenl; education,; and eidcrly services to thc agency.-.to each other-, and,to die gcncrai community;,by •
rpromodng an'd coihmunicating'thc.missibh of Com In conjunctibniwith ihe.Exccutivc Director
and Fiscal Officer thc.Deputy Director provides the stewardship of SNHS by bdiig acdycly ihvblyed with;lhe
agency's-high-perfonmuice scniorleadersHip'tcam.in Ac deveiopment,;impioncntatioOi and mahagemeht,'df the
program content as'well as ahh^^ Re^hsib!e:forc5hsuring:Aal services and prograras provided fulfill
the agency's m'ission, and.arc.in compliancc.wiA.ail-fcdcral; stale,--fuhding, and city ft^lations, ceftificalions;
jmd licehsitig'^uirem.chts..

Energy and Housing Operationsi-Director j Southern New Hampshire Scoiccs life.
20.16-2018.
Rc^nsiblC/for proyidirig the v^pus:SNHS EncrgylandiCrisis programs,- Information TccHnblogyvlHousing and
Maintenancciprograms.with,mission, ,vision and leadeisliip.-Respbnsiblc fori^thc plahm and
cyalualiph,of allfacetSipfifiscaland programmanagcmcnt, effectiveness whileproiHding general pycrsight for all
of-Ae program's administr^oh andjday-tp-day^m^ iricludmg Iwdgct management; grant'wridng and
purchasing. Also'rcspoosible formaintainmgawofidng.relatibnship with.gdyern.mimtal bffici^s, local boards
and agencies ih.deyclppmgjmd mwaging.the programs., lniCon|unction.with thc Execulive Director ahd.'Fiscal
Officer this posidoM provides .the stcww^ pf.SNHS.bybcmg actively, Inyplycd wiA,Ac Ki^-
pcrformancc seniorjleadership team in thc.dcvclopmcnd' implcrocntadph, Md management df^rb^ra cbritent as.

'well M annual budgets:. Rcs^nsibleTor ensuring Aat services and programs providedffuifill thc agcncy'V
mission-and arc in compiiahce iviA;iall f(rferal,,sdUc,,fun^ cify; o^ifi«Ubris,.and licensing requirements.

.Ener^y/Difector 1 S.buthcrn'NewHampshire'Services.inc.

.20i-3-:26l6 . . .
;Responsible fbr-coordinadon; impiemcntation,'budgetihg,^ovcrarsupcrvisiph and.managancht of Ac Fuel
;Hccnic;Assistance.Prp^ms,.Crisis ProgTaras,,Weaiheri2adon.Pr9gram, Lead.Haaard CbnOpJ.I^^tn', and
YouABuild Propam for Hilisbo'rough^and Rbckih^^.'Gpunlics. Dcyclop and'Maintain reiationships^wiA
federal, rtatc and,local grantors.'lntervene on'behif of Ac'Coipmupity Actibh;p<^aihing to Ac Core Utility
.WeaACTzadbnjEnwgy.EfPcjeh.i^^^ Maintains a strong working rdationshipsiwiA C^,-NH;Lcgal
Assistance,:6ffice of Strategic Iniriadve. DOEi.Libj^.Utili^ Evi^purce; NHEC, Unitil,.NHHFA, NREL,
Apprise aod.oAer local non-;profitiand pnv8te companies in Ac industry.,Participates'in muUiplc HealAy Home
sdare^c planpihg.cdmmittees.

Weather,ization:Dircctbr [.'Southern New Hampshire Services Inc;
20.06-20.13:
Responsible for cop'rdihatidn. implemCTtation, bjjdgetirig,.oycrall, supervision and.roanagcmcnt of Ae
WcaAcrization, Lead Abatement,.and YouABuild Programs for Hijlsbp.rou^ Md.Rockingham.ppunties.,
Developed and'Maiht'aih.rcladonshipS:with federal, state and local grantors, intervened on behalf of the-
Community Acdon Associationldunrig ,Ac.merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid-Gas albng with filings
pertaining,to Ae Core.Ene^iEffi'ciency.Programs:. Dcvelopcd strpng working relationships.wj A ,0,CA,,NH



Legal Assistance, Office of Energy and.Plwning, DOE, Liberty, Energy, Evcrsouixcj-l^HEC; Uniiil, NHHFA,
.NJ^L, Apprise afid_pthCT l^al'riqri-i3fbTu ahd.priiratc cpmpj^ in iHe.iridus^.' .ScrvW onMhc Depaitmerit of
^^ergy special task force designed to iraplcmchi a Nadorial.Best-Practiccs-Manual for JT^KSA^fpr
WeathcrizatioD'Energy Auditor Certification., Participated in.a "One Touch" piloteffort which became a
statewdepractjcearid^ received hationd,r(xog^iriOT

Energy Audit6ri | Southcrn'Ncw'Hampshire Scnvlces IhCi
•2004 - 2006

R«pbhsibicTpf,p^6fmtng fie^ CTCTgy audits of low in'come fesitJeridal 'propmics::^rwid;.the;^t
and compu'tcrizcdTormats to deiermihe.cost effectiveness of conservation mcasurcs'needed;'gcncrate work order
spe« fpr0e.contractors.. Cohduci.properTdllpw throu^.and.field.mspectipna assurc/quality installations and
client satisfaction.

Network-Analyst 1 Genuity
2004-2006

Responsible for.rnpnitoring the Genuity Diafup network supporting AOL'Domestic and Intemaiional subscribers
jnciuding Japan, USA^and Canad^ Rc^onsibiJifi« include isplating and frpubltah prpblems/outages and
configuration iMues,-on diftcrentitypes ot-.Cisco.routcrs.Xuccni APX's; MAX's..and None! GVX-'is.
TrpublKhdofirig consists of isblaring'^^ through;Kead®hMd,tcs^^ difrcrcnfTe!co-3;..A!so
responsible fpr;cretaing, ffpybl«hpoting, and closing tickets in a group'tjckeling queue. Demonstrat«l s.tT;chgths
in.^tbe areas ofihterpersond skills.and.negotiation.

M education:
,2000 :NH GooOT^ity TccbnicSI College
199^1-1998: Dovcr^Hi^ Schobl
Qther: Weatherizaiion writtcn.and field certification, Departoent.of.Ener^ Quality GontrbMnspectbr

.Certjficaiiph,;muitip!e"hariohal'and rcppnal.wealhenzajljb.n'.b^ In.trq tp'Ciswjbutiers.Tl and'
TT design and troubleshooting,training. ATM and Frantc Rday networkdesif^ trainir^, LAN and WAN
trairiing, QC3, 0,C48, and OC192 desi^ did odubl«hopling iniiriihg, BPI End^ i^dysL,Lead contractor,
a^tcmcnte^ificaiioni ccrtificaiiorii 0SHA 3P to L^d SVfe WMdicrizatiori
certification.

SKILLS

•  Problem solviiig-.
.• -New Business Development'

•  Social Media'

Public Speaking
■  'Data Aoalysi^Analytical ihihkihg

•  Stratcpc Planning;
•  Operations Management
•  Contract'N^otiations
•  Team and Retalionship^building

'• Pl^ing'andifprecas.ting

Budget and Financial management'
Leadership

•C^munity Assessment
Cpmputd.skiilis specific.tbjbbjhclude,
•Tj^TvNEAT^^^
•'Mictosoft-365, PowerPpinti Outlboki
Word, Excei, Web.- Empo'^R Md'CSSJ
-and many others that'can'bc.beheficial.

ACTIVITIES/ACGQIViPilSHMENTS
•  Numwus pfessi«icle;S;.rclat^^ to Weathmatiph.includ visits fipih'the AssistahtiSwr^^^

Efficiency from thelDcpartment of Vice Pr«idCTt_JPe Biden.

•  MenibCT of thcCity of NashiialHcalthy.'HdrnM.'S^te^ (^mmittee.;
•  MembtTofthe"'City,bf,Manch«tCT-Hea]thy.Hbmcs!StTatepc'PlanhihgCoihmid
• ' Union Leader 40junder 40. Class of-2015..

•  Vice'Prcsideht of ihcNcighbor.hclpihgNeiglibor-Board.
•  Member of ibe Energy-.Efficiency.and Susiainabie'Energy Doard.
•  Member of the'Residehtial Ratepayers AdvisoryBo^.



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

DedlGated accounting professiona!'wi.th S years of npnrprofit experience and byer .20 yea r5 of broad
experlehceTh manufacturing, dlstr(butlpn>;:reprganizatlons,:mergers:an^^^^ sales/bpefations
pian'nih^fdrecastlhg and establishing &;monftprlng performance metrics in a rnanufacturlng ehvlrohment.
Experienced In pflyate and publlt corporations,- ihcludipg.8 years ln:3 prlyate;e.qujtV enylrphment with a-strong
focus on ̂ uity'spb.nsop Gomfhuhicatldn and liquidity managetrient Compjeite knowledgepf P&L,'baiahce
sheet, cash flow and cost accbuhtihg;. Prbven.skllls atstaff leadership, trainlrig and devejppmeht.in a team
:envirp_nrnent. Professional Experience:

•  Fiscal-Ojfflcer in ribnprofit.prgahlzatidh

.• Contrdllerlh MEG &-Olstributidn

•  Tfeaslify .ahd Cash Flow Management
•  RihariGlai &:Capital Budgeting, Reporting,&,;Contrpj,
«? CbstrAccbuhtlng Manager
•  General Accounting Manager

** Buslness_,PerTormance Metrlc;Establishment:and'.Measuremeht'

PROFESSIONAL E^CPEIRENeE

Sputherh:New»:famp.shir.eServiM NH s/2ob9.-Preseht
Southern;New Hamp'shlre:.Seryice5:(SNHS)Ms a hbri-pfbflt entity dedicated'to.helping pepple help themselves.
SNHS accomplishes tKisthrqugh.a'varietY-of^ ■af.cer^te"^s,^offlces, clinics, and jn,take\slghts
located throughout R9cklngham:and,HI|lsbbrpd counties. The agency'als6;6vefsees 29 hquslrig facfjitles
■with approxihiately 1000 tenants, SNHS recelyes arid administers ̂ 3.6 miiUbri In pfbgfarfi funds^annua'lly with
over. 450 erriplbyees.

ChiefFiscoiOfpcef. 1/2017 to Present
•  ;Ovefsee financial arid accduritlrig compliance, rnarntairiing:c^^^ and mana'glrig pbteritlal buslness

Tlsks

" Manage" the 'annual budget-process and analysis actiyitjes-
p  :Prepa~t;e presentation for Board'of D'.lrectors;me;etings, pEesentirig thq;brgan[z3.tiori's,financial results
•  D'evelbpvand riialntaln banking relationships
• Managethe-Annua! Audit process

.Senior. Accduhtont 5/2009-1/2017
Assisted Fiscal DIfe.ctbr:ln bvefseerng all fiscal and financial actiyiOes Iricludlrig cornp'iance'with federal, state,
!and,fun,dirig source requlrerrierits asTwell as'.accordance:wlthsGAAP

•  .Developed arid impleniehted indirect cost calcuiation and interfaced wrth'Generai Ledge'r
• Mbriitbfed and pre'pared month(y:budget^vs,actu^^ recommended adjustments and forecast

spending '
•  Created specialized reports for the Indlvidual.grant's repoiting requ.irements,
•' D.esigried allbcatidri rfiethcds fpr^prpperly bllliqg shared items tO^mdlyiduaj graritslahd programs
•  Prepared hribnthly agency prograrp revjews'for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors review



James M..Chalss6n

WOOD STRUerURES, INC. BiddeYprd, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI,;ls a highly I.eyeraged.buslness owned by Rbark Capital, a private equity fund, headquaftefed In.Atlanta,
GA. WSI is a;;$.7Q mjlllqn manufiacturer'^ floor trusses, yyal) panejs and ? distributof of engineered
w.'ood products. The compan/s.prqducts'are.sp|d into the residentja] and light comrnercial constructiori
markets

ControHer 2006^/2009

.Managed all aspects of accouhtingerid fepdrting'iqaitruss manufactu'rlhg plant a's.well as an engineerediwood
products dlstributipn iocation thatjnduded 2 locati6ns:lh Maineiahd Ijn Ma'ssachusetts.
•  Calculated andessisted in the 'rhanagemeht of the compahY^s.covenants

;• W.brked/dbseiy'with-s'enibrmariagemehtdun the:,sa}e process ffom-the seller (HarbourGroup) and
ibuyef (RoarkCapitalt

•  Identified cost dnyers.and'implemehted process changes to reducd the.rhohthly-.closing cycle from 18
tp; 5; days

•  Conducted rnonthly reviews with'the managers oh fihahclal resultsehd measufement-
•, Oyqfsawithe payrdlT function of160+ employees

Accounting Manager' 2001-2006

Recruited'to company to'restore financial controlsiahd establish best practlces cpncefnirig both geheral ledger
;and co^-accpuntlng;processes. Responsible for oyersjeelng the accounting of 2 locations in Maine and 1 in
Alabama.

•  Established the;reportlng-protocoliof the company used by both equity sponsors-
•  Educated, modvatedendld.eyeloped e staff of 3 to succeed in'thel/:roMs pfiflnancial reSporislbinty
•  idendfiedi.andl.mplemerited processes and procedures for alj.inter.company sales;,tfarisfefs,,

consoiidatibn and-elimlnatlons.

•  Streamlined therp3yroir;pjocessthat-;inctudedfransferrlng;to:ap:external supplier (AC)Pj;..which reduced
cost by 40%'

•  Conducted physical Inventories and defined their ppjicies and procedure afiajl locations.

ViSHAY SPFWGJJE, Sanford, 1978t2001
ViShay^Sprague Is a diyisibhbfVlshay Iritertechhblb'^ Inc. (NYSELVSHjia global manpfarturer of discrete
senilcohductpfs arid pas7sive"electforitc compbrierits. The Spfague Dlvlslbn hrianufa.ctufes^solld tantalum:
;capacitprs:vyith arinualjsa,les-pf$2^ rnHlion,and l;40b employees.;

Plant Cbsi-Accouniina Manaaer • 1997-2001

Division General Accduntiha Manager l99'S-1997
Division ODerdtidn Accduntaht 1989^1995

Division Fixed A'sset'Accbuhtaht. l?87-i989
Master EhaineeMaT^^ 1984^i98>

Lea'd PrdductidnTechriiciari 1978-1'984

EDUCATION

NASSbN COLLEGER, Springyale, ME
.B.S. In Business.Administration
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